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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

- Highlights : : :
Andrna Pic ("Andina” or the "Company and with its subsrdranes the “Group”) is a Latin Amerlcan energy group

Our financial results incorporating the results of Andma together with its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out below:

. = Revenue US$246.3 million (2018: US$248.2 million)
* QOperating loss US$2.7 million (2018: US$13.5 million)
¢ Net assets US$69.1 million (2018: US$94.8 million}

Business review .
The Group’s principal activity is electricity generation and distribution to the regulated public sector in South America.
its principal assets are a 51% indirect controlling interest in Emprasa Distribuidora de Electricidad de Mendoza S. A.
(“EDEMSA"), the main electricity distribution company in the Province of Mendoza, and a 47% indirect controlling
interest in Hidroeléctrica Ameghino S. A. ("HASA"), a 8B0MW hydroslectric power plant in the Province of Chubut.

Revenue for the Group for the year decreased from US$248.2 million in 2018 to US$246.3 million in 2019. Revenue
from operating activities in local currency increased by 61% year on year but the devalugtion of the Argentine psso
(“AR$") against the US dollar (“US$") resulted in a decrease in the Group revenue in the reporting currency of USS,

The distribution business represents 97.5% of the Group's revenue and the electricity generating business represents
the remaining 2.5%. .

The Group's tolal assets have decreased from US$337.5 miltion at the end of 2018 to US$329.1 miflion at the end of
2019,

Total current liabilities increased from US$164.5 mitlion at the end of 2018 to US$183.4 million at the end of 2019. At
the year-end, the Group had cash resources of US$7.9 million compared to US$22.3 million at the end of 2018.

Borrowings, excluding leases, have increased from US$10.7 million at the end of 2018 to US$16.7 million at the end
of 2019. Current borrowings, exciuding leases, decreased from US$9.7 million at the end of 2018 to US$7.9 million at
the end of 2019 and non-current borrowings, excluding leases, increased from-US$1.0-million at the end of 2018 to
US$8.9 million at the end of 2019. - : .

Operaﬂng and financial review
Due to the continuous significant devaluation of the AH$ the financial review has been prepared in both AR$ and US$
to facilitate a better understanding of the underlying business performance.

EDEMSA

Financial review
In 2019 EDEMSA reported a post-tax loss of US$20 4 million (AR$1,218 million - loss) compared with US$20.8 mrllron
profit in 2018 (AR$757 million - prom)

Sales lor the year have shown positive growth of 3.3% in real terms following tariff increase in July 2019. However,
inflation continued to erode EDEMSA's margins. Although EDEMSA managed to keep its operating cost increases in
AR$ below inflation, gross'margin 'in reat terms has declined from US$39.7 miflion in 2018 (AR $1 491 million) to
US$30.4 million in 2019 (AR$1,81 5 mrlhon) .

This situation_put pressure on its working capital position rorcmg delays of certain paymems to its main electricity
provider CAMMESA.




ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Tarlff update ’ )

The 5th tariff review commenced on 8 February 2017 by the Ente Provincial Hegulador Electrico (‘EPRE”") covering a
period from 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2023. Following a public hearing on 3 July 2018 new tariffs were enforced on 1
August 2018. The new tariff tables were the same as those previously in force and did not reflect the significant cost
increases of ihe electricity providers. Consequently, EDEMSA appealed this new tariff and ls currently awaiting the
resolution of this appeal.

On 19 October 2018, EDEMSA submitted a request to EPRE for a review of the Distribution Value Added ("VAD")
portion of the existing tariff. The EPRE called for a public hearing in order to consider EDEMSA's request. Following
the public hearing, a new tariff scheme has been enforced from 4 July 2019 reflecting the favorable results of the
public hearing. .

On 8 January 2020, EDEMSA submitted a request to EPRE for a recum'ng six—n'\omhly.review of the electricity
distribution companies’ VAD according to the procedures established under a previously published Decree 48/17.

On 26 February 2020, a public hearing was held by EPRE to consider the electricity distribution éompames VAD which
allowed various stakeholders to contribute. Although the tariff increase ‘was just approved by Decres 08/21 on 6
January 2021.

Settlement of CAMMESA', 3 mstonc debt
At 31 December 2019 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$17 2 mﬂllon (AR$ 1 billion) for historic energy purchases_
incurred pnor to 2019.

During 2018, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed a payment plan for CAMMESA's historical debt of US$ 69.4 million -
which included a reduction in late charges, a grace period from 1 February 2016 10 April 2018, a financing term of 90
months from April 2018 until September 2025 and a fixed annual interest rate of 10%. The agreement is being fulfilled
"and there were no unpaid instalments at the reporting date. No formal additional payment request has been received
as of the date of this report considering the overdue current debt with CAMMESA mentioned below. )

. Settlement of CAMMESA's historic debt under Article 15

On 21 December 2016, Law 27.341 was published.(National Budget 2017). Article 15 of this law established the
compensation terms for the historic debt which Argentine eleclricity distributors have with CAMMESA in relation to the
purchase of energy between 2013 and 2016 (time during which electricity tariffs were frozen). Under this law, a ompany
should be able to net off the foregone income with the amount payable to CAMMESA. On-the basis that EDEMSA's

foregone income was higher than the habuhty owed to CAMMESA the application of the law should result in a full -
discharge of the outstanding liability.

Although EDEMSA has agreed a payment plan with CAMMESA in respecl .of the 201 3-2016 period, EDEMSA did not
relinquish its right to claim the Article 15 credit. Subsequently, the company has filed a claim with the Energy
Secretariat of the Nation to request the application of Article 15. No response has been received regarding this claim
as of the date.of i issuance of these financial statements.

Settlement of CAMMESA's current debt
At 31 December 2019 EDEMSA owed. CAMMESA US$105.6 million (AR$. 6.3 bullon) for energy purchases of which
US$88 4 million (ARS$ 5.3 billion) relates to 2019 and are due immediately.

EDEMSA is curremly in the process ot negonaung a paymeant plan with CAMMESA to ensure it is i'eﬂective of the -
tough economic landscape in which EDEMSA operates. While the negotiations are ongoing, the outstanding debt

cohtinues to be payabie on demand. After a formal payment request made from CAMMESA on January 2020, . -

EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed the suspension of procedural deadlines while negotiations are ongoing under Law
27591, Anticle 87.




STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Settlement of CAMMESA's current debt : (Conlinued)
On 14 December 2020, Law 27591 was publushed (Nanonal Budget 2021) Article 87 of this law instructs the Energy
Secretariat of thé Nation to regularize the debts and credits with the distributors. The measuras contemplate different
alternatives, which include, the negotiation of a payment plan for up to 60 months with a grace period and reduction
of the interest rate. Likewise, the Ministry of Energy is empowered to dictate the applicable regulations and-determine,
apply and recognize in the fiscal year 2021 the credit recognized by article 15 (Law No. 27,341). These measures
were regulated by the Ministry of Energy under Resolution 40/2021 on 21 January 2021 EDEMSA has made the
presentations of the information requested by the authorities in this regard. E

Operating review

During 2019, ongoing focus on productivity and’ process eﬂ”cnency continued. Despnte the hyperinflationary
environment, the company has maintained all the key commercial indicators at their 2018 level through strict cost
control and maximizing aperating efficiency.

The more important key commercial indications are:

- Management of business procesé
- Quality of services
- ‘Energy loss ratio

New regulatory requnrements in relation to subsndtes and residential bllhng has required addmonal resources for the
correct and effective mplementatnon which inevitably increased the cost base.

In 2019, EDEMSA ‘continued migrating from paper billing to a fiscal electromc billlng system, resulting in a 25%
increase in its customer base.

During 2019, the level of energy losses mcreased to 14,75% and the nvprall electricity demand has decreased-by
2.27% compared to 2018.

The historic trend in energy losses suffered by EDEMSA is as follows:
* December 2016: 12.35%; .
* December 2017: 12.66%;
* Decermber 2018: 14.08%.

HASA

Financial review

The company recorded a profit after tax for the year of US$1.9 miilion (AR$111 million) compared to the 2018 proflt
after tax of US$1.5 million (AR$57 miilion). Sales in real terms remained stable amounting to US$6.3 million in 2019
(AR$373 million) compared to US$6.3 million in 2018 (AR$ 238 million). The power genarated in 2019 was 89 GWh,
a 19% decrease compared to the 122 GWh generated in 2018.

The current_ tariff structure was established under Resolution 019/2017 S.E., a madification of Resolution 022/2016
S.E. In February 2020 the Secretary of Energy passed a Resolution N° 31/2020 with a new remuneration system for
power generahon companies resulting in a change in currency moving from a tarift determined in US$ to ARS. The
new resolution is expected to have a 30% negative impact on the future revenues of the company.

Operating review )
Water supply during the year was 973.1 hm® ¢ ompared 10 829.5 hm?in 2018.

The total energy produced during the year was sold on the spot market Collections on bnllmgs to CAMMESA remained’
- constant at 60 days, the same level as 2018.

During 2019 the replacement of the generation unit “AMEGHI01" was successfully completed with a total investment
of around US$1 million: The turbine started its fully functional operation on 10 April 2019.

.
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ANDINA GROUP-

Key petformance indicators ‘

The directors use @ range of performance indicators 0. monitor progress in the delivery of the Groups strateglc
-objettives, to assess actual performance against targets and to a:d management of the business and cansider the
following felevant in assessing performance.

Revende
Sales provide ameasure of the Group's activity that is influenced by the demand for electricity, the amount of electricity
generaled and epergy prices.. Ravenue decreased from US$248 2 mitlion (AR$9,332 mllltoﬂ]ﬂn 2018 to US$248.3
million (AR$15 024 million) in 2019

Gross margin

This represents the margin generated by {he core business and excludes all non-operating costs, such as_financing
and tax expenses as well as any one-off itens. Gross margin in. uss decréased to 13. 5% in 2019 from 17. 6%In 2018

Energy losses
This measures the efficiency of the energy distnbuted and includes the technical and commercial loss. Energy losses
tncreased fmm 14,00% at thié end of 2018 to 14.75% at tna and of 2019.

Water fevel ’

The reservoir wafer level is an tndtcatton of the amount of power that can be generated. The water level at tha end of
2019 was 153.58 meters compared to 154.34 meters at the end of 2018 : N
Covid-19

At the date of this repon the Company’s and the Group S operattons have seen limited impact from the Covid-19
pandémic: Management hava carried ot mulhple scenario analyses of potential downsides including decreases in
the demand for electricily, as well as workforce and supply chain disruptions. Whilst the future of the pandemic
remains unknowr, based on the scenario. analyses performed, the Company and-the Group have sufficient
‘resources to adapt ta the current and potential challenges it may face. The directors are thereforé confident that the
Covid-19 effects will nof undermine the COmpany S and the Group's abamy fo continue as a going conoem

Future developmems ’,
The immediate focus of management i is on securing taﬂft reviews that will ensure the tong~term sustannabltily of the
busmess and continuat mvestments tn the infrasiructure. ) s .

Negotiating 8 combmation of debt wa»vers and arevised payment plan with CAMMESA is another primary focus for
the forthcoming year. This will enable an ordery seftlement of the accumulating payables and loan balances as well
as restructuring of other debts within the Group. ~ &

Subsequent events :
tnformatlon about subsequent events is presented in note 33

Principal risks and uncertainties
information about the Group s and the Company’s pnncnpal risks and uncertamhes is presentad on pages § - 6

' 8172 Statement ' '
S172 Statement is presented on pages 7 - 8. :

By order of the board
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES,

Set out below are the key operating risks and uncertainties affecting the Group.

Margin risk -
The-revenues of the Group 8 principal trading subsidiary EDEMSA, are subject to a regulated electricity tariff regime -
set by the provincial Govemment, which is revised on a specified periodic basis. This directly impacts the Group’s
profitability and its ability to fund its operating costs and capital expenditure requirements. Tarifts applicable for the -
year. under review were insufficient to maintain economic and financial sustainability and the delay in the .
implementation of tarifts for the fifth review period means the Group is linanclally exposed. This remains a key risk as

" continuing delays or shortfalls in tariff increases could put the Group into financial difficulties. . .

Mitigation

The Group sesks to mitigate thess risks by monitoring price ﬂuctuatrons of its key operatmg costs and by taking actions
to minimize the impact on financial performance through various hedging strategies detailed in note 26. The Group
engages in regular presentatlons and negotiations with the regulator to support the need for inflation and tariff
.adjustments. .

Economic vulnerability and hyperinflation

The Argentine economy has expserienced significant volatility in recent decades, charactenzed by periods of low or
negative growth, high levels of infiation and the significant depreciation of the Argentine Peso, which is the functional
currency of the Group's Argentine operations. In the last 4 years, the Argentine Peso experienced a rapid depreciation
against the U.S. dollar and other major foreign currencies and as of 1 July.2018 it qualifies as a currency of a
hyperinfiationary economy. Rising costs and frozen tariffs ara having serious adverse effects on the Group's
profitability, production spend, infrastructure investment and ability to service its foreign currency debts.

Through 2019, the Peso's depreciation continued, and in September 2019, the Argentine Government adopted a series
of measures reinstating foreign exchange controls, ‘which limit the Group's ablility to access the foreign exchange
market and extemal financing. These factors pose srgmhcam risks to the Group s hquldny and ability to access credn .
and the capital markets.

" Mitigation

The Group seeks to mitigate this risk through comprehensive procurement strategres and advance currency
acquisitions for US dollar purchases. The acqunsmon of dollar related matena!s in advance in order to fix the price is
the only palliative to this from

Political and regulatory mterventions .
The Group's operations are based in Argentina and are subject to Argentine laws and regulatlons The Argentme .
Govemment has historically exercised significant influence over the economy promulgating numerous, far- reaching
regulations and reforms affecting the economy and electricity companies in particular. Amendments 1o laws and
regulations governing the Group’s operating activities or more stringent implementation or interpretation of these laws
and regulations couid have a material adverse impact on the Group.

Mitigation :

ThegGroup utilizes reputable legal representatlves in Argenhna to continuousty monitor the legal and regulatory regime.
Periodic mestings are held with Argentine tax advisers to review fiscal changes and regulatory requirements. The
updates are typically undertaken on a monthly basis. in addition, the Group is a member of ADEERA (Asociacién de
Distribuidores de Energla Eléctrica de la Republica Argentina) which consistently works with the Argentine authorities
ta assist in the understandlng of regulatory constraints and assists in the modmcatlon of legislation designed to clarfy
mconsrstencnes in legislation and interpretation of the law. .
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' APRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)’

Plant operating risks

Failure of dn essential component in any of the Group's operating assets will impact the Group’s- ability to distribute
and generate electricity through planl outage or restriction to operauons The Group's assets have been in service for
a substantial amount of time and aging is a significant factor in many areas. Significant plant component faulura or
failure of a critical non-replaceable plant item may affect the operating lifetime of the station.

. Mitigation
The Group seeks to mitigate these risks by having a risk-based plant maintenance and replacement program

Business diaruption due to Covid-19

The current situation surrounding the Covid-19 global pandemic represents significant uncertainty for the. Group, the.

industry it operates in and the local and global economy. Although at the date of this report the Group has experienced

. limited operational disruptions caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, the future of the pandemic remains unknown and
‘the Group continues to face challenges emerging from Government restrictions, staff absences and supply chain

delays as well as dxsrupnons to key panners and capital markets.

Mitigation

- The Group seeks to mitigate these risks by implementing effectwa measures to ensure the satety of employees and o

contractors, which include, amongst other things: following Government guidelines, communicating precautionary
measures to all staff to prevent the spread of the virus, enabling remote working, explonng available liquidity options -
and lmplememmg business continuity strategy.
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$172 STATEMENT

The directors are required to explain how they consider the interests.of key stakeholders and the broader. matters set
out in section 172(1) {A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 (‘S172") when performing their duty to promote the success
of the Company and the Group under S172. This includes considering the interest of other stakeholders which will
have an impact on the long-term success of the Company and the Group. ’

" This S172 statement explains who the Company’s and the Group’s stakeholder groups are, their material issuss and
how the Directors of Andina engage with them, and the effect of their expectations, including on the principal decisions-
taken by the Company and the Group during the financial year. The $172 statement focuses oh matters of strategic
importance to Andina, and the level of information disclosed is consistent with thé size and the complexny of the
busmess : .

When making decisions, each Direclor ensures that he/she acts in the way hefshe considers, in good faith, would
most likely promote the Company’s and the Group's success for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing
'so have regard (among other matters) to: b .

.8172(1) (A) The likely consequences of any dacision in the Iong term

The Directors understand Andina's business and the évolving environment in whlch -it operates, mcludmg the
-challenges of navigating through the political decisions taken by the Argentine Government resulting in continuous
changes to business rules. The Directors recognize how Andina's oparations, in particularly in Argentina, are viewed
by different parts of society and that some decisions they take today may not align with ali stakeholders' interests.

During the second half of 2019, the Government's actions direclly impacted the margins and cash flows of electricity
distributors in Argentina. As a consequence, the financial debts assumed by the Group in Argentina have becoms a
burden too big to build a reliable payment plan for the short term, so full debt renegotiations took place. This resulted
inthe extensxon of payment plans to preserve the Group’s operating cash flows for the next 20 months.

172(1) (B) The interests of Andina’s employees * '
Andina’s employees are core to the business and fundamental fo its operational success. Significant efforts are made

" . to ensure that Andina remains a responsible employer from pay and benetits to heaith, safety and positive working

environment. The Group invests in its employees through

stnct health and safety monitoring;
technical and soft skills training;
scholarship plans;

communication apps;

pulse surveys.

S§172(1) (C) The need to foster Andina’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

Strong and mutually beneficial refationships with suppliers, customers and governments are fundamental pillars for
. Andina’s operational success. The Group seeks the promotion and application of certain general principles in such

refationships. The ability to promote these principles effectively is an important factor in the decls:on fo enter into or

remagin In such relationsmps in particular: .

’

Customers
+ Regular monitoring of customer satisfaction indices.
= Faster tumaround of customer call-ins despite significant i mcrease in volumes.

Partners and suppliers : )
« Tendering to ensure equal opportunities for suppliers and the best commercial outcome for the business. .
* Health and Safety control plans to improve safety across the value chain. .

Governments and regulators
= Maintaining regular dialogue with governments and engaging in policy debates that are of concern to Andma
and the communities in which it oparates.
» Holding regular stakeholder groups.
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S172 STATEMENT (commuso)

§172(1) (C). The need to foster Andmas business relauansh:ps with suppliers, customers and others
{Continued)

Society . - : ; .
* Continuous monitoring of environmenta! management through annuat audits.
= Engaging with local communities through social media, community workshops and training.
= Sponsoring of soclal and charitable plans such as:
a) - Hands to the-Pot (Manos a la ofla): employees volunteer program to collect rice and vegetables for Food
Banks; .
b) Annual Blood Donation Campaign in cooperatlon with the Regional Blood Treatment Centre.

S1 72(1) (D) The lmpact of Andina’s operations on the communhy and the envlranment .

Andina engages in regular consultations with focal peopls and NGOs to gain valuable perspectives on the ways in
which the Group's activities could impact the iocal communny or environment. The Group actively participates in
NUMEerous community pro;ects in particular: :

* PAS (Solidarity Help Programy): to suppon teaching and assistance to +3,000 chlldren in low income /
impoverished areas;
¢ PLEC (Light at Home Program): since 2005 this program has helped +60,000 people (12,500 famihes) to -
access electricity in a safe and economically affordable way;
« Alliances with organizations like Junior Achievement and FONBEC to support the educatlon of young people
. from poor backgrounds. .

The Group utilizes the Integrated Management System to ensure. continuous monitoring of environmental
management and ongoing compliance with ISO 9001 Quality Management and' ISO 14001 Environmental
Management. The Group is subject to annual external environmental audits cenmed by IRAM (National lnsmute of
Standardization and Cemﬂcat«ons)

§172(1) (E) The das!rabllity of Andma maintaining a reputation for h:gh standards of business conduct

The desirability of Andina to maintain its reputation for high standards of business conduct, transjates to the Board of
Directars’ intention to behave responsibly and ensure that the business operates in a responsible manner within the
high standards of business conduct and good govemancae.

Regular communication amongst the Board and employses and effactive, formally recorded Board Meetings, ensures
such standards are ma[ntamed Where appropriate, independent legal advice is obtained to support the decision-
making process.

S$172(1) (F) The need to act fairly as between members of the Company and the Group

The Directors are responsible for choosing the course of actions which enable Andina to achieve its long-term strategy,
taking into consideration the impact on stakeholders. In doing so, the Directors act fairly as between the Company's
and the Group’s membars but are not required to balance the business interest with those of other stakeholders, and
this can sometimes mean that certain stakeholder Interests may not be tully aligned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Execuﬁve

Jorge Rosenbiut (Chalrman)

Jorge Rosenblut joined the board on 31 October 2019. Jorge qualified as a certified Civil industnal Engmeer at the
University of Chile and a master's degree in Public Administration from the Harvard Kennedy School. He is Chairman
of Smart Utilities LLC and Chairman of the Board of the Institute of the Americas From 2000 to 2015. Mr. Rosenblut
acted as Chairman of the Board of the Latin-American Energy arms of the Enel Group (previously Endesa Spain).
Prior to joining the ranks of corporate executives, Mr. Rosenblut held leadership roles in the Chilean government from
1980 to 1996. In 1994 he was the Undersecretary of Telecommumcauons and the Undersecretary of the Presadency
from 1995 to 1996. . .

~ Valeria Inés de Oliveira Cézar (Chiet Executive Officer)

Valeria de Oliveira Cézar graduated as an Economist from-the Universldad Nacional de Rosario. Laler she
obtained a Masters degree in Finance from the Tocuato Di Tella University in Buenos Aires and a dipioma in
renewable energy from the Champagnat University of Mendoza. Since 2010, she has worked as financial analyst
and M&A consultant at Emst & Young, Banco Meridian and integra Capital. In 2016 she joined EDEMSA.’

Neil Bleasdale (Executive Director)

Neil Bleasdale joined the board on 17 May 2013. He is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬂcer of EDEMSA,
Neil is a businessman and holds a B.A. (with honours) from the University of Leeds, England. He also acts as a non-
executive director.and altemate director of a number of other Argentine companies. .

Non-executive

Julian Collins (Executive Director) :
Julian Collins juined the board on 12 June 2020. He brings with him an extensive experlenoe of workmg with a number
of multi-national organizations and corporate entities. He is also a director of a number of UK property companles

Marcselo Comba (Non-Executive Director)

Marcelo Comba joined the board on 17 May 2013. Marcslo graduated as a solicitor from the University of Buenos
Aires in 1988 and became a Master in Business Law in 1994. After working in the legal departments of Siemens S.A.
and-Ferrovias SAC, he has worked since 2002 as a Partner in the law firm of Aldar Bestene- Garcia Moreno &
Associates. He is also the.former President of HASA.

Maria Fernanda Martinez (Non-Execu!lve Director)

Fernanda Martinez is an Industrial Engineer who graduated from Universidad Nacional de Cuyo where she completed
. an Exchange program at the Center Arts et Métiers ParisTech Bordeaux-Talece, obtaining expertise in Environmental

Process and Materlals Engineering for Sustamable Development. She has a Postgraduate Degree in Project
Management and Administration. .

* With more than five years of experience in the Renewable Energy sector she currently serves as an EDEMSA'
Senior Analyst in the area of Devalopment and Evaluation of Energy Projects.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

The directors present their annual report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 .
December 2019

Principal activities : -
The Group is a Latin American energy group, with electnclty generallon -and dlstnbmlon interests'in Argentlna

4Direclors
The directors who held office durmg the year and up to tne date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows: -

Mr Jorge 'Rosenl)lut : ‘ (Appointed 31 October 2019)

Mr Luis.Alvarez Poli o (Resigned 29 January 2021)
Mr Nell Bleasdale ‘ . ) )

Mr Julian Collins . (Appointed 12 June 2020}

Mr Marcelo Comba

Mr Carlos Bastos . (Resigned 29 January 2021)
Mr Jorge Depresbiteris (Resigned 31 October 2019)
Mrs Valeria Inés de Qliveira Cézar = (Appointed 29 January 2021)

Mrs Maria Fernanda Martinez (Appointed 29 January 2021)

Results and dividends
The results for.the year are set out on page 17.

No ordinary dividends were paid or proposed during the year (2018: US$nll) The directors do not recommend payment
of a dividend.

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

The Company has made quallfylng third party indemnity provisions for the bensfit of its dneclors during the year
These provnslons remain in force at the reportmg date.

Financial instruments .

Information about the Group s and the Company‘s financial instruments and llnanclal risks management is included in
note 26. . .

Dlsabled persons

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the apmudes of the
applicant concemed. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort Is made to ensure that their
employment within the group continuss and that the approprlate training Is arranged. It is the policy of the group that
the training, career development and promollon of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of
other employees. ) .

Employee involvement

" The group's policy is to consult and discuss with employees through unions, staff councils and at meetings, matters
llkely to affect employees interests. .

Information about matlers of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports which seek to
achieve a common awareness on the part of alf employees of the financial and economlc factors affecting the group's
performance

~10.-
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) _
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Future developmems )
Information about the Group's and Company's tuture developments is presented in the Strategic Report on pages 1 -
3.

Auditors
The auditors, PrlcewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have expressed their willingness to continue as auditors and a resoiution
to reappoint PricewatemhouseCoopers LLP will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Statement of directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparlng the Annual Report and the fmanma| statements in accordance with
appllcable law and regulation.

Company law reguires the directors to‘prepare financlal statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the Group's and Company’s financial statements in accordance with mtematuonal accounting standards
in conformity with the requurements of the Companies Act 2006. .

Under company faw, directors must not approve the fmancnai statements' unless they are satistied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to: -

. select suitable aceouming policies and then apply them consistently;

s state whether app!icéble international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of. the
Companies Act 2006 have bsen followed for the Group and Company financial statements, subjeot to-any
material departures disclosed and explamed in the financial statements;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudenl‘ and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern bas»s unless |t is inappropriate- to presume that the
Group and me Company will continue In busmess .

The directors are also responsible for safeguardmg the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for takmg
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and othef xrregulanues

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that ere sufficient to show and explain the
. Group’s and the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companles Act
2006.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparanon and dissemination of fmanc:al statements may differ from fegislation in other
jurisdictions. . ..

-11.-



ANDINA PLC

DIREC’fORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Directors’ confirmations - ‘

In the case of each diractar in office at the date the directors’ report is appifoved:

e so far as the director is aware, there is no relevanl audit information of which the Group s and the Company's
‘ auditors are unaware; and

o they have taken all the steps tﬁat they ought to have taken és a director in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s and the Company’s auditors are aware of
that information. - .

Going concern. - .

At 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabllities of US$68.3 million and debt of US$16 7 million and the
Company had net current liabilities of US$10.0 miliion and debt of US$8 8 million. ,
" The directors have revnewed the cash flow forecasts for the Company and the Group for the period 30 June 2022,
taking account of changes in tariffs, currency tluctuations, scheduled borrowmgs repayments and the impact from the
Covid-19 pandemic, and note that the Company’s and the Group’s ability to contmue in operational existence is
dependent on its ability to settle its payable balances with CAMMESA

In 2019 lhe Company’s subsidiary EDEMSA, whose principal activity is electricity distribution in Argentlna reported a
loss for the year of.US$20.4 mﬂhon and had a net current liabllities position of US$60.3 milfion.

As detailed In note 18, the delays and uncertainues arising from the implementation of the local tariff regime resuited
in EDEMSA deferring payments to its principal supplier CAMMESA, the state ownad electricity wholesaler, with the
{otal outstanding debt amounting to US$105.6 million at the reporting date, of which US$88.4 million-is due
immediately. At present, the Group does not have sufficient liquid resources to settle its obligations with CAMMESA.
The board of EDEMSA is working closely with- CAMMESA to define an action plan to address the current situation
and agrese a seitlement schedule. Whilst in the past both parties have come to an agresment regarding a payment

plan for previous overdue balances and progress is being made on a number of potential options for the current
" overdue debt, in particular under Law 27591, Article 87, currently there is no binding agreement in place. The directors
are confident that an agreement and repayment plan will be reached with CAMMESA as it has been previously.

-2



ANDINA PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Directon' confirmations ' . . ) (continued)

" These conditions mdtcate the existence of a material uncer!amty which may ‘cast slgmﬁcant doubt over the Group's

ability to continue as-a going concern. Based on the current progress of the negotiations with CAMMESA and the
specific amendments to paymenit térms expacted to be agreed, the Group will be' able to mest its obligations as they
fall due. ‘Thiis, the directors conlinue to adopt the gomg concemn basss of acoountmg ih preparing the consolidated
financial statemenls . .

. By.g eroﬂhe boa'-'
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'ANDINA PLC

Independenr auditors’ repoft to the members of Andina Plc
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Andma Pic 's Group frnancral statemems and parent Company ('the Company) financlal statements.
(the financial statements®):

s give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019
and of the Group’s loss and the Group’s and the Company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in confonmty with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,

e have been prepared in accordance wrth the requirements of the Compames Act 2006,

We have audited the nnanciel statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual
Repont"), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company Statements. of Financial Position as at 31 December

- 2019; the Consolidated income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated and Company Statements of Cash Flows, and the Consolidated and Company Statements of -
Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of
the significant accounting policies. .

v

Basis for opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternationa! Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)"} and’ applicable
law. Our responsibilities under I1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We befieve that the audit evrdence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence ;

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requnremenis that are relevant to -our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibllities in accordance with thesse requirements.

Material uncenainty related to going concern - Group '
in forming our opinion on the Group financial statements, which is not modified, we have consrdered the adequacy of
the disclosure made-in note 1.4 to the frnanclai statements concerning the Group’s ability to continue as a gomg
concern. .

" The Group experienced delays and uncertainties arising from the implementation of a local tariff regima which resulted
in its subsidiary, EDEMSA, defarring payments to its principal supplier CAMMESA. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group made a loss in the year of $20.6m and has net cumrent liabilities of $68.3 million. Included in its total liabilities
is an amount of $105.5m owed to its principal supplier CAMMESA, of which $88.4m is due immediately and at present
the Group does not have sufficient liquid resources to settle this obligation

The board of EDEMSA is working closely with CAMMESA to define an action plan to address the current situation
and agree a settlement schedule. Whilst the directors have indicated that they have reasonable expectations that a -
satisfactory outcome to the negotiations will be achieved, at the date of signing the financial statements there is no
binding agreement in place and the outcome of these actions is uncertain. These conditions, along with the other
matters explained in note 1.4 to the financial statements, indicate the existence ot a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. The Group financial statements do not
include the adjustments that would result if the Group was unable to continue as a going.concern.

-14 -



' ANDINA PLC

‘Independent auditors’ report to the membefs bf Andina Plc {continued)

Reporting on other information’ :

The other information comprises all of the mtormanon in the Annual Report other than the financial statements-and
our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our ommon on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opmlon or, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to ba materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency
or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatsment
of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other mformanon we are required to report that
fact. We have. nothmg to report based on these responsibilities. .

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors' Report, we also. cons}dered whether the disclosures required by
the Companies Act 2006 have been mcluded

Based on the responsibilities descnbed above and our work underntaken in the course of the audit, lSAs (UK) require
us also to report cenam opmlons -and matters as described below.

Strategic Repon and Directors’ Report

_ In our opinlon, based on the work undertaken in \he course of the audi, the information given in the Strateglc Report
and Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 is consistent with the financlal statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requurements

in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we did not identity any material misstatements in the Strategic. Report and Directors’ Repont.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements’

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on page 11, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material mlsstatemant whether due 0.
traud or error. . . .

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s
abillity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
aperations, or have no realistic alternative but fo do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to lnﬂuence the
sconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website al:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This descnptlon forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report ’

This repont, including the opinions, has been prepared tor and only for the Company’s rnembers as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. Wa do net, in-giving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpase or to any other person to whom this report Is shown
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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ANDINA PLC

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Andma Plc (contmued)

Companies Act 2006 excaptlon reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our oplnlon

. we have not received alfl the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or retums adequate for our audit have
not been recelved from branches not visited by us; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not mads; or

. the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. .

Timothy McAllister (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors |
London

1.5 March 2021
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOFIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Notes .

Revenue ' o : A ’ 4
Cost of sales '
Gross profit

- Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
impairment of property, plant and equipment
Other operating income
Operating loss - . : 5
Finance income , . . -9
Finance costs o . 10
Hypeérinflation impact ) 1.21
{Loss)/protit before taxation
Tax on (loss) I ’ 1

' (Losa)/profit for the financial year

(Loss)/profit for the financial year is attributable to:
- Owners of the parent company
- Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes on pages 26 - 74 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2019 -
uss'oo0

246,346

(212,978)

33,368

(19,537)
(19,286)

2,706

(2,749)

13,544
(58,499)
34,830

(12,874) -~

(7.701)

(20.575)

(11,616)

(8,960).
(20,575)

2018
us$'o00.

248,213
. (204,424)
43,789

(20,154)
{20,515)
(17,246)

619

: (13,507)

48,117
(31,212)
24,863
28,261

(9,679)

18,582

b e

7.018
10,664

18,582 .
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Loss)/profit tor the tinancial year-

Other comprehensive: (expense)lincome
" ltems that wilf not be reclassified to profit or loss
Translation differences
Actuarial loss on defined benelfit pension schemes
Tax relating to other comprehenswe loss
Other cpmprehenswe (expense)income, for the year

-

. Total comprehensive (expense)iincome for the year

: Tota! comprehenswe (expense)ﬁncome for the year is

attributable to:

- Owners of the parent company
- Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes on pages 26 - 74 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

1.21

2019
Uss$‘ooo

(20,575) -

L (4,457)
(673)
5

T (5,125)

(25,700}

(13,613)
(12,087)
{25,700)

2018
uss'ooo

18,582

Bt ]

106,080
(798)

200 -
© 105,482

=Sy

124,064

T

64,799

. 590,265 .

124,064

ey
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ANDINA PLC -

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
- " - /‘
B ]
2019 2008(1)
Notes US$'000. .US$'000 uss'coo USS$'000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 8,233 8,771
Property, plant and equipment’ 13 201,551 203,530
Right of use assets ' 20 1,224 -
Deferred tax 22 - 42
" Inventories 16 T2,742 3,085
Trade and other receivables 17 309 > . 145
, : 214,059 T 216,563
Current assets . : ..
Inventories ) 16 3279 3,696 .
Trade and other receivables 17 61,606 57,441
Investments 14 42,336 38,465
Cash and cash equivalents 1.12 7,851 . 22341
_ ' 115,072 . 121,943 . *
"~ Total assets 329,131 ‘ 337,526
Current fiabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (167,895) " (141,370)
Borrowings 19 (7.875) -(9,739)
Leases 20 {387} (213)
" Provisions 21 - (6,318) _(11,995)
_ Defined benefit pansion llabitity 23 (€86) (1,218)
e (183,341) (164,535) -
Non-current Habilitles
Trade and other payables 18 "(27,561) (43,267)
Borrowings 19 (8,860) /(997)
Leases 20 (1,051) (614)
Provisions 21 (a02) _(507)
Deferred tax tability 22 (35,055) (28,034)
Defined benefit pension liability 23 (3.726) - (4,737)
. o , (76,655) (78,156)
Totat liabilities (259,996) (242,691)
Net assets 69,135 94,835

(1) Certain prior period balances have been reclassified in-order to improve presentation. See note 1.2
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ANDINA PLC . - o

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANC!AL POSITION (CONTINUED)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
Equity _ A
; , . 2019 : 2018
Notes Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 uUss$'000
5 o

Share capital o ) 25 . 14,904 . 14,904
Translation reserve g 25 S 29,635 31,292 -
Merger reserve . : o 25 : 40432 ] 40,432
Retained deficit - 25 (69,949) _ (47,993)
Equity atributable to owners of the parenl company A ' _ _ 25022 : '38.635 ‘
Non-controlling interests : : . 44,113 . 56,2
Total equity . - 69,135 o 94,835

' The accompénying notes on pages 26 - 74 form an integra! part of these financlal statements.

The financial statements on pages 17 to 74 were approved by the board of directors and authorized for i ussue on 15
March 2021 and are signed on it ahalf by:

‘ d-wvé(.

Jorge Rgsenb)
* Direct

%

e e - ——— ——— — o —— ———
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-ANDINA PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

. Non-current assets
Investments
Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

- Total assets
Cureent liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Botrowings

. Total liabllities

Net assots

Equity

Share capital

Translation reserve
. Merger reserve

Retained deficit

Total equity

Notes

14
17

1.12

18
19

18

25
25
25
25 -

2019 2018
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000
33,829 32,398
124 100
19 20
143 120
T 33,872 32,518
(2,326) (908)
766 7.454
(10,092) (8.362)
(2,501)  (2.589)
§1.014! : 913
§3.51S) g3|5022 .
§13,607) : (11,8642
20,365 20,654
14,904 14,804
(3.714) (5,251)
40,432 40,432
531,2571 ‘29,431! .
20,365 20,654

As permitted by s408 Compames Act 2008, the Company has not presented its own income statement and re!ated
notes. The Company's toss for the year was US$1 826,000 (2018 US$1 051,000 profit).

The-accombanying notes on pages 26 - 74 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorized for issue on 15 March 2021 and are

signed on its behalf by

v -

Jorge Ros
Director

COmpany egistration No. 8095058
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'ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIbATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Balance at 1 January 2018

° Year ended 31 December 2018:
Profit for the year .
Other comprehensive income:
Transtation differences * -
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans

. Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2018
_ Year ended 31 December 2019;
Loss for the year ‘
Other comprehensive income:
Translation differences ** -
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans
Total comprehensive expense for the year

Balance at 31 December 2019

The accompanying notes on pagés 26 - 74 form an integra‘l part of these financial statements.

() tncludes initial hyperinflation impact of US$137 milfion, net of US$31 million translation impact on opening balances at the yearend exchange rate.
(**)dncludes hyperinflation impact of US$57 million, net of US$61 million translation impact on opening balances at the yearend exchange rate.

Share Translation Merger Retained Total | * Non~ Total
capital reserve reserve deficit * controliing controlling equity
: ) . interest ~ interest

. US$'000 UsS$'e00  US$'000 Uss'000 uss'oo0 US$'000 - US$'000 .

14,904, (25,894) 40,432 (55,606) (26,164) .(3.065) (29,229)

- - - 7.918 7,918 10,664 18,582

- 57,186 - - 57,186 48,894 106,080

- - (305) (305) (203) (598)

N 57,186 - 7,613 . 64,799 59,265 124,064

14,904 31,292 - - 40,432 - (47,993) 38,635 56.260 94,835
v

- - - (11,615) (11,615) (8,960) (20,575)

- (1,657) - - (1,657) (2,800) (4,457)

- - - (841) {341) (327)- (668)

- (1,657) - (11,956) _(13,613) (12,087) {25,700)

14,904 29,635 40,432 {59,949) 25,022 44,113 . 69,135
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ANDINA PLC

s

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

-

Balance at 1 January 2018
Year ended 31 December 2018:

Profit for the year .
Other comprehensive income:
Transtiation differences

Total comprehensive expenss for the year
Balance at 31 December 2018

Year ended 31 Decamber 2019

Loss for the year .
Other comprehensive expenss:
Transiation differences

e

"Total comprehenslve expense for the year
Batlance at 31 December 2019

sham Translation

" Retained

Merger Total

capital reserve - reserve deficit equity
'US$'000 US$'000  US$'000 USs$'000 US$'000
14,904 (2.627) 40432  (30,482) 22227

[

- - - 1,051 1,051

- (2.624) . - (2.624)

) - (2624) - 1,051 (1,573)
14,904 ¢ (5,251) 40,432 {29,431) 20,654 -
. . - (1.826) (1,826)

. 1,537 - - 1,537

. 1,537 o (1,826) (289)
14,904 {3,714) - 40,432 {31,257) 20,365

The accompanying notes on pages 26 - 74 form an ihtegral part of these financial statements.

—— ——

e ——— e —— —— ————
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ANDINA PLC

‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
| FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2019
' Notes US$‘000
" Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from oparations - 30
Income taxes paid’

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities .

Purchase of property, plant and equipment ‘13 -(11,795)
Purchase of current investments 14 (17,309)
Proceeds from sale of current investments _ ' -

Interest received ’ . 4,426

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings . " 408
Repayment of borrowings and interest paid
Dividends paid by 47% owned subsldxary

Net cash used in tinancirig activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents
Cash and cash eqmvalents at beginning of year 1.12
Effect of foreign exchange rates 112 .

Cash and cash equivalents at end of y'(ear

(1,651)
(1,083)

, 2018
US$'000  US$'000
16,520
(192)
16,328
(14,487)
y . (2,843)
235
. " 14,181
(24,678) - ’
464
(5.953)
(280)
(2,306)
(10,656)_-
22,341 -
(3,834)
7,851

; A The accompanying notes on pageé 26 - 74 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Significant non-cash transactions

. US$'000

28,050

28,050

(2,914)

LI

(5,769)
19,367

5,106
(2,132)

22,341

B =

‘There were no significant-non-cash transactions in 2019 or 2018 apart from the transactions detalled below:

31-Dec-19

Transter of inventory to properly, blant and aquipment

uss'o00

3,753

31-Dec-18
us$'ooo

. 3,434

.94.
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ANDINA PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

. : 2019 " 2018

Notes US$'000 USS$'000  US$'000  US$'000

Cash flows from operating activities , 4 ' Lo~ : ’

Cash generated from operations o .31 o 393 -

Cash ﬂoWs from financing activities . ‘

Proceeds from borrowings - _ ) . 105 . -

Repayment of borrowings oo A (500 - -

Net cash used In ﬂnanéihg activities ) _(395) ‘ -

Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash . )

Equivalents ’ ‘ A @ .

Casﬁ and cash equivalents at beginning of year. - ’ 20 - 19

Effect of foreign exchange rates : . ' C 1 ’ . 1
" Cash and cash equivatenls at end of year . ‘ : : 19 20

OIS Soessesesssesoos

The accompanying notes oh pégeé 26 - 74 form an integral part of these financial statements. A ‘




ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

‘

1 Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance in accordance with intemational accounting

_slandards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and international financial reporting
standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union and the Company
financlal statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity w:lh the requirements of the
Compames Act 2006. .

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the a¢counting framework mentioned above requires
management {0 make judgements, ‘estimates and assumptions that affect the application ef policies and reported
amounts of assets and llabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of which form
the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The dreas involving a higher degree of judgement or -
complexuy, orwhere assumptions and estimates are significant to the oonsohdated financial statements, are disclosed
. in note 3. :

1.1 General lnformallon
Andina Plc ("the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in England and Wales The
registered office is 1 South Quay, Victoria-Quays, Sheﬂleld United Kingdom, S2 5SY. -

The Group consists of Andina Plc and all of its subsidiaries.

1.2 Basis of preparation )
The principal.accounting policies adopted in the preparatton of the financial statements are set out below. The
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance .with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008.

The consolidated financial statemenls have been prepared under the historic cost convention, except for the
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair velue through profit or toss and the net assets and results
of the Group's operations in Argentina, an sconomy that is considered hyperinflationary, which are expressed in
terms of the measuring unit current at the closing date of the reporting period.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in US dolfars ($), rounded to the nearest thousand.

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with the applicable framework detailed above requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
“apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are slgnmcant to the consolidated ﬂnancual
statements, are disclosed in nhote 3.

The estimates and undsrlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revi'sions to accounting
estimates are recogmzed in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that penod or
in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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14

Changes in presentation
During the year the format and presentation of the financial statements has been amended to improve the quality
and the clarity of the information presented. As a result certain information has been reclassified as follows:

*  The defined benefit liability is now presented on the face of the consolidated statement of financial
- position. Previously, the defined benefit liability was included within non-current other payabiles.:

. Following the adoption of IFRS 186, the lease liabllity is now presented on the face of the consclidated
statement of tinancial position, Previously, the lease liability was included within borrowings.

Basis of consolidation . -
The consolidated fmancua! stalements include the flnanc:lal statements of Andina and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are entities (mcludmg special purpose entities) which are controlled by the Group. Control exlsts
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvemsnt with the entity and has the

- abllity to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are mcluded in the ‘consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, where appropriate. ~

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the éccoummg
policies used into line with those. used by the Group All intra-group !ransacnons balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation. - . .

- Non-controliing Interests in lhe net assels of subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's interest

therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those ‘interests at the date of the original business
combination together with the non-controlling interests' share of profit or loss and each component of .other
comprehensive income since the date of the combination. Total comprehensive income.is attributed to the non-

controlling interests even if this results: In the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. The non- -

controlling interest of shareholders in the acquire is initiatly measured at their proportion of the net fair value of
the assets, liabilities and contmgent habnlmes recognized. .

Going concern

Covid-19 '

At the date of this report, the Company's and the Group S operaﬂons have seen limited impact from the Cov:d-
19 pandemic. Management have carried out multiple scenario analysis of potential -downsides including
decreases’in demand for electricity, as well as workforce and supply chain disruptions. Whilst the future of the
pandemic remains unknown, based on the scenario analysis performed, the Company and the Group have

. sufficient resources to adapt to the current and potential challenges it may face. The directors are therefore

7

confident that the effects of Covid-19 will not undermine the Company’s and the Group's ability to continue as a

going concem.
.

Matlerial uncertainty .

However, at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of US$68.3 million and debt of US$16.7

miflion and the Company had net current liabilities of US$10.0 million and debt of US$8.8 million.

The directors have revxewed the cash flow forecasts for the Company and the Group for the pericd 30 June
2022, taking account of changes in tariffs; currency ﬂuctuatlons schaeduled borrowings repayments and the
impact from the Covid-19 pandemic, and note that the Company's and the Group's ability to continue in
operational existence is dependent on its ability to settle its payable balances with CAMMESA. -

In 2019 the Company's s’ubsidiary EDEMSA, whose principal activily is electricity distribution in Argentina,
reported a loss for the year of US$20.4 million and had a net current liabilities position of US$60.3 million.
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1.5

As detailed in note 18, the delays and uncertainties arising from the implementation of the local tariff regime
resulted in EDEMSA deferring payments to its principal supplier CAMMESA, the state- owned electricity
wholesaler, with the total outstanding debt amounting to US$105.6 million at the reporting date, of which
US$88.4 miltion is due immediately. At present, the Group does not have sufficient liquid resources to settle its
obligations with CAMMESA. The board of EDEMSA is working closely with CAMMESA to define an action plan
to addrass the current situation ‘and-agree a settlement schedule. Whilst in the past both parties have come to
an agreement regarding a payment plan for previous overdue balances and progress is being made on a number
of potential options for the current overdue debt, in particular under Law 27591, Anticle 87, currently there is no
binding agreement in place. The directors are confident that an agreement and repaymem plan will be reached
with CAMMESA as it has baen prevnously

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncentainty which may cast significant doubt over the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the current progress of the negotiations with CAMMESA
and the specific amendments to payment terms expected to be agreed, the Group will be able to meet its
obligations as they fall due. Thus, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accountmg in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. .

Revenue .
Revenue relates mainly to electricity generation and distribution services.

Energy supply to busmess and residential customers

The Group supplies alectricity to residential and business customers in Mandoza Argentina. The vast majority
of contractual energy supply arrangements have no fixed duration, require no minimum consumption by the -
customer.and can be terminated by either party at any time. The Group has determined that no enforceable

rights and obligations exist at inception of the contract and arise only once the Group is the legal supplier-of .
energy to the customer. The performance obligation is the supply of energy over the contractual term. The

performance obligation is considered fo be satisfied as the customer consumes the units of energy delivered.

This is the point at which revenue is recognized.

In respect of energy supply contracts, the Group considers that it has the right to consideration from the customer
for an amount that corresponds directly with the value defivered to the customer through their consumption. Itis
the ;udgemem of the Group that the customer consumes energy as the Group supplies and, as a result, the .
Group recognizes revenue for the amount which the entity has a right to invoice. The Group’s assessment of
the amount that it has a right to invoice includes an assessment of energy supplied to customers between the
date of the last meter reading and the year end (known as unread revenue).

Unread electricily comprises unbilled revenue and is estimated through the billing systems, using historical
consumption patterns, on a customer-by-customer basis; taking into account weather patterns, load forecasts
and the differences between actual meter readings being returned and system estimates. Actual meter readings
continue to be compared to system oslimates between the balance shest date and the finalization of the
accounts.

The Group holds a number of energy supply power contracté that specify a minimum consumption volume over
a specified contractual term. The transaction price for these contracts is the minimum supply volume multiplied

" by the price determined by EPRE per unit of energy. Revenue from the saie of additional volumes is considered

to be variable and not included in-the transaction price. Revenue for these contracls continues 1o be recognized
as invoiced.

Energy generated
The Group generates electricity to' be sold through the national Wholesale Electncny Market (MEM),
administrated by CAMMESA and regulated by the Secretary of Energy of the Nation (SEN)
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1.6

1.8

The amount of energy genérated is determined by the hourly demand that CAMMESA has and the price is
established by SEN. There is a single performance obligation. The Company recognizes its income based on
the amounts expected to be received, once the performance obligation has been satisfied. .

‘Other operating income
Other operating income primarily anses from ancillary serwces prov:ded to thurd parties and is recognlzed atthe
time the sarwce is provided. :

Intangible assets

Goodwilll

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Company's share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is not amortized. # Is tested
annually for impairment.and carried at cost less accumnulated Impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recogmzed for the amount by which the asset‘s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and.value.in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units).

Concesslon assets

Concession assets acquired are stated at fair value at the date of acqu:smon Amortlzat:on is charged on a
straight-line basis as tollows

Concession : 30 years (EDEMSA) and 50 years (HASA)

Property, plant and squipment
Property, plant and equipment are shown at cost 18ss subsequent depreciation. Costs include expenditures that

_‘are directly attributable to the acquisition of the tems.

Subssequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or récognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,

only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred. .

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to aliocate the cost of each asset to its
residual value over its estimated usetul life, as follows:

L&nd and bunldmgs ' . 30 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment up to 25 years
Networks and power transformers : i 30 to 50 years
Transformers 30 to 40 ysars
Work in progress and other assets 410 9 years g

Land and work-in-progress included within ‘Work in progress and other assets’ are not depreciated. Other assets
include IT and communication equipment, 1umnure and other goods.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds .
and the carrying value of the asset and is recognized in the income statement.

Non-current investments
In its separate fmanclal statemems, the Company recogmzes mvestments in subsidiary companies measured

“.
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Borrowlng costs related to non-current assets '
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acqulsmon construction_or productlon of

qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended -

use or sale, are added to the cost of those.assets, untit the assets are substanﬂally ready for their intended use
or sale. .

The commencéement date for capitalization is when (a) the Group incurs expenditures for the qualifying asset;
(b) it incurs borrowing costs; and (c} it underiakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are tgcognized in-profit-or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of non-current assets .

‘The carrying amount of the Group s non-current assets is.compared to the recoverable amount of the assets

whenever avents or changes in circumstances indicate that the net book value may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amount is the higher of valus in use and the fair value less costs to sell.

Value in use 1s estimated by reference to the net prasent vaiue of expected future cash flows of the reievant

cash generating unit.

if the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount of an asset, an impairment loss is recogmzed The
revised carrying amounts are amortized in fine with the Group's accounting policy.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed if the racoverable amount increases as a resull of a reversal
of the conditions that originally resulted in the impairment. The reversal is recognized in the income statement

and is limited to the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment

loss been recognized in the prior reporting periods.

Inventories

Raw materials and consumables are measured at the iower of cost and net realizable value Cost is determmed
using the weighted avérage cost formula method. Classification is performed based on average consumption of
these assets in recent years. The Group has no history of obsolete or slow-moving inventory,

Cash and cash equivalents :
Cash and cash equivalents include call deposits held with banks and other short-term hlghfy hqutd investments
with original maturities of 3 months or less.

The Group . ‘ The Corﬁpany
31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18 31-Dec-19 31-Dec-18
Us$'000 US$'000 uss$'ooo US$'000

Cash at bank and in hand s 6,670 . 5,943 19 20
Short term deposits ) . 1,181 16,398 - -
' : 7,851 22,341 .19 20

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recogmzed in the Group statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instriment. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of
comprehensive incoms when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and

" the Group lntends to seftle on a net basis or reahze the asset and liability slmul(aneously
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1.13 Financial instruments E ' ' .. (Continued)

Financial assets and financia! liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition-or issue-of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair vaiue of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisltion of financlal assets or financiat liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recogmzed immediately
in profit or loss. '

v
’

Financial assets , Co
All recognized financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at elther amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
. Financial assets that mest the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the
effectlve interest rate method

» The financial asset is held within a business model whose ob;ectwe is to hold ﬂnanaal assets in order
to collact contractual cash flows; and,

s The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are classified and meésured at fair value through profit or loss when the asset does not meet
the criteria to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. Such assets
are carried at fair value with gains or losses recognized in the income statement. .

The Group does not hold any financial assets that mest conditions for subsequent recognition at falr value
‘through other comprehensive income (“FVTQCI").

fmpairment of financial assets -

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") on financia! assets that are measured
at-amortized cost which comprise mainly trade receivables. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date 1o reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
The Group always recognizes litetime ECL on trade recelvables. The expected credit losses on these financial -
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
tor factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as-well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value ‘of money where
appropﬂate '

Derecognmon of financial assets.
The Group derecognize a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. if-the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and -
continues 1o controf the transferred asset, the Group recegnizes its retained interest in the asset and an.
assoclated fiability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
Fmancial Ilabihtles ' ’
The classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial liability
was issued and its characteristics. All purchases of financial liabillties are recorded on trade date, being the date
on which the Group becomes party to the contractual requirements of the financial liability.. Unless otherwise
indicated the carrying. amounts of the Group's financial liabilities approximate to their fair values. The Group’s
financiat liabilities consist only of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. .
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Financial llabllmes measured subsequently at amortized cost

Financial liabllities that are not (i) conlingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combmaiion (i) held for
trading, or (iii} designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The Group's financial liabilities measured at amontized cost comprise trade and other payables, and
loans and borrowings. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
assetliability and of allocating interest income/expense over the relevant period. The effective interast rate is

~ the rate that discolnts estimated future cash receipts/payments through the expected life of the financial

1.14

asset/habmty or, where approprlate a shorter penod

Dereoogniﬂon of financial Ilabllmes

A financial liability (in whole or in" part) is derecognized when lhe Grotip has extinguished its contractual
obhgatlons it expires or is cancelled Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the statement of
comprehensive income,

Fair value measurement hierarchy

- The Group classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at !alr value using a fair value hierarchy

that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the fair value measurement (note 26). The fair value

‘hierarchy has the foliowing levels:

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
¢ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Levet 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
" either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2);
* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs}
(Level 3).

The leve! in the fair vaiue hierarchy within the tinancial asset or hnancnal liability is determmed on- the basis of
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Equsty instruments ‘ ’

An eqully instrumeéni is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Equily instruments issued by the Company for non-cash consideration are recorded at the
market valus of the equity instrument at the date of issue, net of direct issue costs.

Taxation )

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and detarred tax. Tax is racognized in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equily. In this case the tax Is also teoogmzed in other comprehensive income- or directly in equity,
respectively. . ]

Current tax

The ‘income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax |s recogmzed in.the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized-in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized i in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, -
respectively. - ’

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the *
statement of financial position date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect to
situations In which applicable tax regulation is. s$ubject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authormes

R e m — ——
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" Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognlzed using the liabitity method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and iheir carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
daferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred incoms tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred

- income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
" balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is reallzed or the

deferred income tax liability is setﬁed R

Defemed income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax is provided on'temporary
differences arising ori investments in subsidiaries and assoclates, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

‘in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally e'ntorceable right to offset current tax
assets against cumrent tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income

" taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable enmy or different taxable entities where

1.16

lhere is an intention to setﬂe the balances on a net basis.

Minimum notional income tax’
The Group determines the tax on notional presumed income by applymg the current rate of 1% on the Group's .
taxable assets at year-end. The tax on notional presumed income and the income tax complement each other.
The Group’s tax obligation for each year will be equal to the higher of these taxes. However, should the tax on
notional presumed income exceed income tax in any given tinancial year, such excess may be computed as a
payment on account of any axcess of income tax over the tax on minimum presumed income that may arise in
any of the ten subsequent financial years. The Group recognized the tax on notional presumed income sarned
in previous years as a credit, con.,rdermg that it will offset future taxable income. .

"In 2019 the apphcatron of the minimum notional income tax was repealed for the years begmmng onor after 1

January 2019.

Provlsions .
Provisions for legal and other claims are recogmzed when the Group has a present legal or constructive

- abligation as a resuit of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to

117

settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating lossss.

Provislons are measured at the present velue. of manegement’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects

“current market assessments of the time value of money and the increases specific to the liability.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognized as a liabilitly and an expense, unlass Ihose costs are

- required to be recognized as part of the cost of stock or non-current assets.

The cost of any unused holiday enfitiement is recogmzed in the period in which the employee s services are
received. | . .

Termination benefits are recognized immediately as an expense when the company is demonst'rably committed
to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

«AR. . /
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Long term benefits for years of service
The Group operates a long-term bensfits for years of service plan which represents the accrued benefits o be
. paid to employees covered by the collective bargaining agreement for the lndustry labour union, that have
s completed twenty, twenty-five, thirty, and thity-tive years of service. This is paid in the form of a special
remuneration equivalent to the monthly salary in the month that the year of service condmons are met. This
amount doubles whan the employee reaches forty years of service. .

The cost of providing this benefit |s recogmzed as a liability and an expense over the penod in which the
. employee's services are received. .

Long term benefits for retirement or disability

The Group opérates a defined benefit plan. This represents accrued benems to be paid to employees covered

by the collective bargaining agreement for hght and powsr, for staff reaching retiring ags. or retiring as a resuft
_ of disability prior to this. ’

B
’

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined usmg the projected unit credit method
and is based on actuarial advice.

The change in the net defined benefit liability arising frorn employee service during the year is recogni'zed asan
" employee cost. The cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, ssttlements and curtallments are recognized as -
an expense in measuring profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The net interest element is determined by multiplying the net defined benefit liability by the discount rate, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and
_ benefit payments. The net interest is recognized in profit or loss as other finance revenue or cost.

Remeasurement changes comprise actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the return on
the net defined banefit liability excluding amounts included in net interest. These are recognized immediately in
other comprehensive income’in the penod in whlch they occur and are not reclassified to profit and loss in
subsequent petiods. .

-
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1.8

Share-based payments '
The Group operates a number of equity-settied, share-based compensation plans under which the entity

_receives services from employees as consideration for equity |nstruments of the Company.

The fair value of the employee services raceived in exchange for the grant of the options is recognuzed as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reterence to the falr value of the equuty instrument
granted,

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments granted using the Black-Scholes model. The fair value determined at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the eshmate of shares that will
eventually vest. A corresponding adjustment is made to equity.

The expense in relation to options over the parent company's shares granted to employees of a sdbsidiary is
recognized by the company as a capital contribution and presented asan increase in the company’ s investment
in that subsidiary.

Leases
IFAS 16 was adopted 1 January 2019 without restatement of comparative figures. The following policy apphes :
subsequent to the date of initial appllcatron 1 January 2019. See more details in Note 32. ~

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the con(ractual payments due to the lessor over the lease
term,.with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless this is not readily
determinable, in which case the Group's incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used.
Variablé lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index .
or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they
relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:
* amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee; :
* the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favor ot the Group ﬂ it is reasonably ceriain 1o
assess that option; and,
* any penalties payable for lerminating the lease, if the term of the Iease has been estimated based on
termination option belng exercised.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives
recaived, and increased for:
. ¢ lgase payments made at or before commencemem of the lease;
« initial direct costs incurred; and,
« the amount of any provision recognized where the Group is contractually requlred to dismantle, remove
or restore the leased asset.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilitiss increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on
the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability
to reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounied at the same discount rate that
applied on lease commencement. The carrying vaiue ot l€ase liabilities is similarly revised whan the variable
element of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised. In both cases an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use assel with the revised carrying amount being
amortized over the remaining (rewsed) lease term,
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1.20

1.21

Rentals payable under short-term low value leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another more systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benelits from the leased asset are consumed.,

The following poticy épplied prior to the date of initial application of IFRS 16, 1 January 2019.

Determining whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease was based on the substance of the arrangement
and required an assessment of whether fulfiiment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a spacitic
asset or assets and whether the arrangement conveyed a right to use the asset. )

Leases of plant and squipment where the Group assumed a significant portion of risks and rewards. of ownership
were classified as a finance lease. Finance leases were capitalized at the estimated present value of the

"underlying lease paymants. Each lease payment was allocated between the liability and the finance charges to
_achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The plant and equipment acquired under the finance lease

were depreciated aver the useful lives of the assets, or over the lease term if shorter.

Leases in which a signilicant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were retained by the lessor were
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases were charged to the statement of
comprshensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease on a straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease except where another more-systematic basis was more representauve of lhe time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asse1 are consumed

Government grants
Government grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable certainty mat those grants wull
be collected and-that the Group will meel all the condmohs established.

Government grams received in relation to the purchase of non-current assels are deducted from the cost of
such assets. These assets are’ depremated over lhelr estimated useful lives based on their net acquisition cost.

Foreign exchange

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each Group company are maintained in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency), which in the case of the Argentinean
companies is the Argentine Peso and in the case of the Company is Pounds Sterding. For the purposes of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group entity are expressed in US
Dollars, which is the presentation currency for the consohdated and Company financial statements, to facilitate
companson with 'other utility companies.

The financial statements are presented in US$ and the average rate used was US$1. 277 to.£1 and AR $48.25
to US$1 and the closing rate used was US$1.33 to £1 and AR$59.79 to US$1 (2018: average rate US$1.31 to
£1 and AR$28.11 to US$1 and closing rate US$1.37 to £1 and AR$37.6 to USS$1).

i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

* 1 Accounting policies . ‘ ' - A ‘ : o (Continued)

Functional currency of a hyperinfiationary economy )

IAS 29 requires that the financial statements of an entity with the functional currency of a hyper inflationary
economy must be expressed in the measuring unit current at the closing date of the financial year being
informed, regardless of whether they are based on the historical cost method or the current cost method. To this
effect, in general terms, the inflation produced since the acquisition or the revaluation date, accordingly, must
be caiculated within the non-monetary section. Said requirements also inciude the comparat:ve information: of
the financial statemen\s .

In order to determine whether an economy is considered as hypermﬂatlonary according to [AS 29, the Standard
details a series of elements to be.considered which include an accumulated infiation rate in three years that
approxiimates or exceads 100%. Hence, according to 1AS 28, the Argentine economy must be considered as
nypennﬂatnonary since 1 July 2018.

According to IAS 29, the financial statements of an entity that reports in the currency of a hypennﬂatuonary
economy must be reported in terms of the measuring unit current at the date of the financial statements. Ali
amounts from the statement of financial posmon that are not presented in the measuring unit current at the time
of presentation must be updated applying a ‘general-prices index. The components of the income statement
must be presented in the updated measuring unit to the date of presentation of the financial statements, applymg
a general prices index from the date the incomes and expenses ware accounted.

The inflation adjustment of initial prices was computed taking into consideration the indexes established by the
FACPCE (Argentine Federation of Professional Councils in Economic Scnences) basing on the prices index
pubhshed by the National Staustncs Institute (INDEC).

. The pnce indexes used for restatement of the financial sta;emen‘ts were:

_e 2017 = 124.7956
e 2018 = 184.2562 . .
( * 2019=283.4442 C o

The main procedures to determine the inflation adjustment are the following:

¢ All. monetary assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position are not adjusted, since the
financial statements are already re-expressed at the year-end exchange rate.

+ Non-monetary assets and liabilities that were computed at cost prices at the date of the statement of
financial position-and the capital assets are adjusted based on the correspondmg adjustment
coefficients. .

\ ¢ Al the elemsnts in the income statement are updated applying the relevant conversion factors;

* Gains and losses in purchasing power arising from. the nel manetary position are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income as a separate line under hyperinflation |mpact and amounted to
US$34.8 million (2018: US$ 24.9 million). g

On the initial adjustment for inflation, the capital asset accounts were adiusted as iotlows:
* Tha capital was adjusted since the date of the last adjustment for infiation accounted.

Transactions and balancas

in preparing the financial statemants of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the .dates of the
transactions. At each reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange
differences arising are included in the income statement lor the period.

.37-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) O
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

1 Accounting policies - ' : o {Continued)

Foreign subsidiaries conversion -

The resuits and financial positions of the company's subsidiaries ‘that have a functional currency different from
the company's currency are converted to the reporling currency as follows, depending on whether the functional
currency is in a hyperinfiationary environment or no(.

Entities with non-hypennﬂatlonary functional currency

.

.Assets and liabilities trom each statement of financial position presented are convened at the exchange

rate of the closing date of the statement of financial position.

The accounting capital of each statement of financial position presented is convened at the hlsloncal_

exchange rate.

Profits and losses from each income statement are converted at the yearly average exchange rate
(when the average exchange rate does not represent a reasonable approximation to the accumulated
effect from the transacuon rates the exchange rate at the date of the transaction or the monthly average
are used.)

All exchange rate d«ffe(ences arising from this are accounted for in other comprehensive i income.

Gains and losses arising on the re-transiation of the opening net assets of the Company at prevailing.

exchange rates are transferred to the translation reserve.

Subsidiaries with hyperinfiationary functional currency

.

Assets, liabilities, and the capital from the statements of financial position, as well as profit and loss

from the statement of income, are converted at the exchange rate at the closing date of the statement

of financial position, after being adjusted into functional currency.

_Assets, liabilities, capital, profits and losses from the comparative period are maintained in accordance

with the amdunts obtained at the conversion of the previous financial year. Said amounts are not
adjusted to the following exchange rates because the Company presents its fmanmal information in US
dollars, a non-hyperinflationary currency.

1.22 Fmance income :
Finance income is accrued on a time basis, by reterence to the principal outstanding and the effective mlerest
rate applicable. .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
' FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019.

2 Change in accounting policy

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2019

A number ot new and amended standards and interpretations issued by IASB have become effective for the first

time for financial periods beginning on (or-after) 1 January 2019 and have been applied by the Company in these

financial statements. With the exception of IFRS 16 “Leases”, none of these new and amended standards and

interpretations had a significant effect on the Company because they are. sither not relevant to the Company's -
_ activities or require accounting which is consistent with the Company's current accounting policies.

Detaits of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 has had on these financial statements are given in note 32.

New standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effect:ve and have not been early
adopted

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been lssued by the

IASB that are effective in future accounting periods and which have not been adopted early. None of these are .
expected to have a significant effect on the Company, in pamcular

.. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and 1AS 8 Accoummg Pailicies, Changes in Accountlng
Estimates and Errors (Amendment - Definition of Material)

+ |FRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendment - Definition of Business)
IFRS 9, IAS 37 and IFRS 7: Interest rate benchmark reform
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

3 Judgements ;:ndl key sources of estimation uncenainty

In the application of the group's accounting policies, the directors are required 10 make judgements, estimales
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may ditfer from these estimates. :

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are racoghized in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future periods..

Critical judgements
Control over subsidiaries’ : .
Management has evaluated the level of influence and controt exercised by the Company over its investments
and has determined that it exercises control over them Consequently, it has presented consolidated financial
figures.

Andina Pic owns 80% of HDS shares, which holds 54% ot HASA (47% Indirect holding). Andina Pic is able 1o
control the returns of the entity through the approvai of the entity financial statemenls, entering into sngnmcam
-contracts, and the abitity to.make significant decisions without other shargholder approval.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

3 Judgemems and key sources of estimation uncertainty - (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material’ adjustmenl to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities are as follows

. impairment of tangible and intangible assets :
Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually, laklng into account pnces prevailing at each
reporting date. The carrying values of tangible and intangible assets are also reviewed for impairment where
there has been an event or change in circumstance that would indicate that the carrying amount might not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its

“recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost 1o sell and value in
use. Fair value is determined as the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm's Iength
transaction.

The value in use is determined using the present value of the future cash flow expected.to be derived from an .
asset or cash generating unit. Thé calculation of estimated future cash flows and residual valués is based on
management’s reasonable estimates and is therefore subjective: Operating and economic assumptions which
could affect-the valuation of assets using discounted cash flow models are regularly reviewed and updated as
part of the Group's monitoring of operational and financial performance and forecasting processes. Judgement
is required in determining if operating and economic changes are significant and impact the performance potential
of an asset or cash generating unit, and therefore an indication of an impairment or an impairment reversal.

- The directors carsied out impairment tests of assets at'the cash genérating unit level, refer to note 13.

End of service benefits

The Group recognizes a provision for emptoyee end of service benelits that include management's best estimate
of certaln variables which may not uitimately maich the amounts actually paid at the end of service. The key
assumplions are wage increases, employee turnover, the mortality rate and the discount rate. Past experience
and actuarial tables of mortality are used in making the estimate. For further details refer to note 23.

4 Revenue e
2019 2018
uss'oo0 USs$'000
Revenua analyzed by class of business .
Electricity distribution : ] 240,114 - . 240,282
Electricity generation _ o 6,232 6,326
Other ) ) - 1,605
i - 246,346 248,213
" The Group's revenue arises entirely within Argentina.
§ Operating toss
2019 2018
Uss'000 USs'000
‘Operating loss for the year is stated after chargmg . )
Daepreciation of owned property, plant and equipment - 9,669 2,128
Impairment of owned property, plant and aquupmem : - 17,246
Amortization of intangible assets* o 252 126

(*) The amortization charge for the year is included in the cost of sales line in the consolidated income statement
as it relates to the concession assats.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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6 Employees

The-average monthly number of persons (mcludmg directors) emponed by the Group and Company during

the yéar was:
Group Company
2019 © 2018 - 2019 - 2018
" Number Number Number ~ Number
Selling : T 156 165 . .
Technical : 404 o 426 - - -
{  Administration . ) : 196 170 5 5
. Total * : 756 - 761 5 5
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Group Company
. " 2019 2018 2019 2018
Uss$'000 Us$'000 USS$'000 - Uss$'000
Wages and salaries _ ' ‘ 26,355 31,108 362 473
Social security costs . / _ 6,593 . 4,415 55 -
: : ' ' 32,948 35,520 417 473
7. Auditors' remuneration ,
, » 2019 . 2018
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and associates: uss'o00 Uss'eoo
For audit services
Audit of the financial statements of the Group and Company 17 120
Audtt of the financial statements of the : g
Company's subsidiaries B 180 130
. ) N 297 | 250
“ For other services
Audit-refated assurance services 3 2
Taxation compliance services 7 12
10 14 .
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-~

8 Directors' remuneration

2019 2018
Uss'ooo - -uUss'o00
‘Remuneration for qualifying services . ' 47’ 473

-

. Rémuneration disclosed above includes the tollowing amounts paid to the highest paid director:

SN ' : . 2019 2018
: S US$'000  US$'000

Remuneration for qualifying services o ‘ . _ 178 200

9 Finance income

o 2018 2018
USs$'000 Us$'000
Interest income . : ‘ 5.236 11,754
Refinancing (Note 18} _ : ’ - . 24170
* Gains an financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss - 5,308 - 12,196
. 13,544 48,117
10 Finance costs .
: 2019 2918
USS'000 . Uss'coo
interest on borrowings ‘ - - 9,455 . 10,615 .
Commercial interest - 49,044 20,597
- 58,499 31,212
11 Taxation
2019 2018
USs$'000 USss'0060o
Current tax . .
Corporation tax on profit or loss for the current year - o 680 951
Deferred tax - o . ’ .
Origination and reversal of temporary ditferences ) 7.0%1= 8,728
Total tax charge ' ' 7.701 9.679

-42- .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

n Taxatlon .- : : . (Continued)

The actual charge for the year can be rgconciled to the expected (credn)/charge for the year based on the profit
or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows: .

2019 2018
US$'000 US$°000

(Loss)/profit before taxation . o ' . (12.874) 28,261

Expected tax (credit)/charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in (3,862) 8.478
the Argentine of 30.00% (2018: 30.00%) '
Unutilized tax losses carried forward B . (347) 160
Other-permanent differences ’ 110 o 29
Hyperinflation impact . o 2,265 1,012
Fiscal utility impact . . 9,535 . -
Taxation charge S ' 7,701 9,679 i
Al
~ .

In addition to the amount charged to the income sta(ement lhe tollowing amounts relating to tax have been
recogmzed directly in other comprehensxve income:

2019 - - 2018
USS000  US$000

De(erred tax arising on:- ‘ ) : )
Actuarial dufferences recognized as other comprehensnve income- N {5) - (200)
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"

Taxation o ' ' : . (Continued)

The Group is liable to pay a minimum notional income tax at the applicable tax rate, currently 1%, calculated on
the amount of computable assets at the reporting date. This tax is supplementary to corporation tax and the
Group's tax liability in each financial year is the higher of the minimum notional income tax and the corporation
tax for the year. if the minimum notional income tax for a-given financial year exceeds the amount of income tax,
such excess may be carried forward as a partial payment of corporation tax for any of the ten following frnancral
years. See note 22.

In 2019 the application of the mrmmum notlonal income tax was repealed for the years begunmng onor aﬂer 1

. January 2019,

Factors affecting future tax charge : T | A ‘
The following tax changes, enacted in Decernber 2017 and 2019 will affect Andina's future tax charge:

. Incomé tax for Argentine companies reduced from 35% to 30% for the fiscal years beginning on ‘or after
1 January 2018 and will reduce further to 25% for the fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
These changes are expected to benefit the Group.

« A withholding tax of 7% was introduced on dividends or earnings distribution by companies with
permanent establishment in Argentina. This was effective for the fiscal years beginning on or after 1
January 2018. The rate will increase to 13% for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2022, These
changes are expected to increase the Group's tax charge. .

¢ Tax adjustment due to inflation: from 1st January 2019 hypermﬂanon adjustment should be considered
in the income tax calcutation.

Deferred tax is calculated using the 25% tax rate, being the rate, which is expec!ed to be in force at the time the

deferred tax is reversed.
AN
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12

Intangible assets
Group

Cost

At 1 January 2018

Hyperinflation adjustments
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018
Hyperinfiation adjcistments ‘
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019
Amortization and impairment
At 1-January 2018

Amortization charge
Hyperintlation adjustments .
Exchange adjustments . Q

At 31 December 2018

Amortization charge
Hyperinflation adjustments
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019
Qarrying amount .
Al 31 December 2019
At 31 December 2018

Goodwiil

Concession

Total

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
3816 6,584 10,400
(1.889) 12,792 10,903
(1.927) (3.324) (5,251)
- 16,052 16,052
9,429 9,429
- (9,163) (9,163)
16,318 16,318
- 3,702 3702 .

. 1 126 126
5,354 5,354

. (1,901) (1,801) .

. 7.281 7,281

. 252 252

- 5,174 5.174

- (4,622) 14,822)

- 8,085 8,085

. 8,233 8,233
8,771 8,771

The Companys mtanglble fixed assets were {ully impaired in previous years and there were no nntangnble fixed

assets at 31 December 2019 or 31 December 2018.

~(°) Includes hyperinﬂéuon effects on initial application of IAS 29 in 2018, as well as impairment of goodwill and
" concession assets of EDEMSA based on the.analysis (performed by the Group) taking into account restatement-

balances and comparing them to previous year's recoverable amounts.
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»

12 Intangible assets . o (Continued)

Goadwifl i .

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of the eleclricity distribution business in the Province of Mendoza in 1998 by
EDEMSA. The recoverable amount of this asset is-determined based on value-m-use calculations following the
same procedures.and assumptions as detailed in note 13. ..

) Concession assets ) i .
Concession assels represent the amount paid to acquire the concession ngms and comprlsed of electricity
distribution and electricity generatlon business. .

Under a 1998 concessron agreement, SODEMSA was awarded an exclusive right to distribute electricity in the
Province of Mendoza. The concession agreement is 30 years divided into three managament periods of 10 years
each. Under a 1994 concession agreement, HASA was awarded a 50-year concession-to operate the Ameghino
hydro power generatmg plam located in the Province of Chubut.

Concession assets related to the electricity distribution business were fully impaired in the previous yeérs based on-
" the value in use analysis carried out by the Group. The assets remain impaired at the reporting date.

‘The book values of the concession assets related to the electricity generation business do not.axc'eed'the estimated
vaiue in use under present economic and technical conditions, which were estimated in the context of the current
regulatory position in the electricity market mentioned in the previous paragraphs.
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13 Property, plant and equipment.

Group' - tl;:'i;gi:;g Macgm::‘:r;ﬁ Netwwk:&z‘: Transformers  prog r!vs:r:':: Total
transformers . other assets -
USs'co0 Uss$'000 uss'000 uss'ecco - USs'000 Uss'a00

Cost ' ’ A
At 1 January 2018 N ' 17,001 6,480 80,128 10813 - '36,470 150,892
Additions . 301 28 . - - 17,692 17,921
Digposals’ : A ' . . 24) 24)
Transfers - . 383 2,822 428 (3,630) -
Hyperinflation adjustments * 21,106 20,560 - 237,307 ' 28,255 28,015 336,243
Exchange adjustments (8.583) {3.250) (40.758), {5.459) - {18,454) (76,504}
At 31 Dacember 2018 29,825 24,201 279,499 34,034 59,969 427,528
Additians 1,052 125 128 14,243 - 15,548
Transters 2,456 17 . 6,902 1,056 {10,431) -
Hyperinflation adjustments 9816 ’ 7.207 . 84,620 ° 13,864 17.671 143,278
Exchangs adjustments {11,089) {8.982) (103,731) (12,631) (22,256)  (158.669)
At 31 December 2019 31,028 23,495 277,415 36,551 59,196 427,685
Depreciation and impairment .

At1January 2018 2,189 3825 26,861 . 3474 4,308 40.657
Depreciation charge A 363 120 1,018 Y| 449 2,128
Impairment losses - - - - 15,395 1,851 - 17,246
Hyperinflation adjustments * 6.027 17.020 131,233 15,666 14,777 184,723
Exchange adjustments (1,055} (1.911) (13.794) (1.754) - (2,242) « {20,756)
At 31 Depember 2018 “ 7,524 19,054 '160.713 19,415 . 17,292 223,998
Depraciation charge " 998 531 6,311 1.137 692 9,669
Hyperinflation adiust}henls ' - 2,495 6,399 64,089 9,347 4,117 86.447
Exchange adjustments (2.793) (7.071) (69,328) (8.370) {6.418) {93,980}
At 31 December 2019 8.224 18,913 161,785 21,528 15,683 226,134
Carrying amount

At 31 Decembar 2019 22,804 4.582 115,630 15,022 43,513 201,551
At 31 December 2018 - 22,301 5.147 118,786 14,619 42,677 203,53

The Company had no property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2019 or 31 December 2018.

(") Includes hyperinfiation effects on initial application of IAS 29 in 2018.
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13 Property, plant and equipment . s o (Continued)

Under the contracts by which the Group’s electricity generation and distribution assets were acquired and are
regulated, there are restrictions on the use of the assets and also obligations to maintain relevant assets with the
intention of protecting the services they provide. In-addition, the Group cannot pledge relevant assets as security -
for botrowings, other than for borrowings incurred to fund the acquisition of such assets.

Andina'operates in a tough economic landscépe with hypennffationary environment and uncertainties and delays
in the local tariff regime. This has had an adverse impact on the Group’s operating results tnggenng an impairment
revuew under 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of assets'. :

The Board has carned out an lmpalrment review of long-term assets by companng thetr ‘carrying amount to the
higher of tair value less costs of disposal ("FVLCD") or value in use ("VIU"). For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest Ievel for which there are largely mdependem cash mflows (cash
generating umts or "CGU“) .

Tne VIU for each CGU is determined by calculating the net presént value of the future cash flows expected to be
" generated by each CGU. The estimates of future cash flows were derived from approved extrapolated financial
budgets using an estimated industry growth rate The cash flows include the fotlowing key assumptions:

1) Taritf increases: Management has calculated these increases based on the read|uslment mechamsm in the
concession agreement and the current agreed tarifls;
2) Discount rate: The weighted average growth rale is consistent with the forecasts included in industry
reponts. The discount rate used is a real interest rate and reflects specific nskq relating to the
industry and the country of oparation;
.3) . Growth rates: The cash flows include an estimated growth rate of 1%, which the Directors believe reflects
expected annual economic growth in the areas where the Group operates;
4) Tax rate: Management has used the rates that are expected to be in force in each of the periods
considering the.current tax law;
5) - Inflation and exchange rates: based on estimated and current market inflation and exchange rates; and
. 6) The VIU calculdtions for each CGU, generation and distribution, have demonstrated a headroom of 2% over
the assets’ carrying amounts, indicating no impairment at the year end.

Impact of possible chénges in key assumptions

In light of the relatively small headroom noted above, the nmpasrment is most sensitive to movements in agfeed
tariff rate and discount rate.

(
Accordingly, management has undertaken a sensitivity analysis on these two key assumptions as outlined below:
: . Change in assumption impairment charge
Taifi- - Dacrease of § % USS$ 52 million
- Discount rate : Increase of 20% US$ 38 million
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14 investments

. . Group ) Company
[ 2019 2018 : . 2018 : 2018
Notes USs'000 uss'oco . . uUss'o00 Uss$'000

Non-current

Investments in-subsidiaries 15 - - 33,829 32,398
' - - 33,829 32,398
. Current : . : . '
Listed investments L 127,972 25,908 ‘ - -
Other invesiments 14,384 12,557 -
A i A 42,336 38,465 - -
, 42,336 38,465 33,829 32,398

" Movements in investments ' Group ) Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
| USS'000 US$'000 US$'000 - USS'000
At 1 January . A 38,465 . 29,038 32,398 34,437
Additions ~ - ) 19,789 . 4,066 - -
Disposals . o (2.480) . (1,458) - -
Valuation . E 5,134 21,479 - -
Exchange differences (18.572) (14,660) 1,431 : {2,039)

At 31 December . 42336 - 38465° 33829 32,398

Investments in subsidiaries

The Directors consider the carrying value of investments in subsidiaries 1o be recoverable based on the value in use
ot the assets in HASA and EDEMSA.

Llsted bonds
Listed bonds comprise mainly national govemmem bonds from Argentina. These fmancual assets are valued based
on their quoted pnqes at the reporting date (Level 1).

Other investments

Other investments include mainly trust and common funds, and foreign currency They are camed at fair value
through profit or loss based on managemem s best estimate (Level 2).
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15 Subsidiaries and retated undertakings

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are as follows: °

Name . Country of
incorporation

Andina Electricidad UK

Limited )

gn;\jes Electricidad Argentina ~

~

\

Inversora-Andina de
" Electricidad S.A. Argentina
(‘IADESA’) ¢

Mendinvert SA.  Argentina

SODEMSA ‘Argentina
.Empresa

Distribuidora de

Electricidad de Argentina
Mendoza S.A. S

(‘EDEMSA") *

- -

. : Hidroelectrica del Sur

S.A. ("HDS") Argentina
Hidroelectrica o
Ameghino S.A. Argentina

("HASA")

The Company's subsidiary undertakings ali have share capital consisiing solely of ordinary éhares.

Registered address

. 1 South Quay, Victoria

Quays, Sheffield S2 58Y

Maipu 1252, 2nd Floor,
Ciudad Autonoma de
Buenos Aires

Belgrano 815 - Mendoza

, .
Belgrano 815 - Mendoza

Belgrano 815 - Mendoza

\

Belgrano 815 - Mendoza

Juez Tedin N° 2728 -
Ciudad Autonoma de
Buenos Aires '

Sarmiento 698- Trelew- -
Chubut

. . . EDEMSA's financial statements are available at www.cav.gov.ar -

Principal

. activity -

. Holding

Holding

-

Holding

Holding

Holding

Electricity
- distribution

Holding

Elactricity

generation .

‘Control

-Direct

Direct

" Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

" . Indirect

Indirsct

% Held

100

- 100

100
100

100

. 51

80

47

EDEMSA's shares, rights and obligations under the concession contract may not be assigned, in whole or part, to a
third party without the prior consent of the Province of Mendoza.
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16 Inventories :
' ' Group

- Company
2019 2018

Uss$'000 US$'000

2019 2018
US$'000 . Uss'000
Non-current '
Raw materials and consumables 2,742 3,095
Current L : ‘ ’ :
Raw materials and consumables 3.279 3,696

At the r'eponing' date US$3.8 million of inventery, mostly spare parts, was transfarred to propenty, plant énd
equipment (2018: US$3.4 million); US$2.7 million was transterred to expenses (2018: US$3.8 million) and included'in

'‘Cost of Salgs'.

inventory was written off.in the year.

17 Trade and other receivables

Inventory has been classified as current and non-current to more accurately reflect the period of consumption. No

61,606 57,441

Group Company
2019 , 2018 2019 " 2018
US$'000 US$'000 uUss'o00 - USS$'000
Non-current ’
Trade receivables - 94 - -
Corporation tax recoverable i ) 23 - - -
Other receivables . ‘ 286 51 - -
: : 309 145 - -
Current ) : .
Trade receivables : ‘ , 20,033 17,075 105 100
Less provision for impairment _ . {2,386) (2.240) . -
) . : C 17,647 : 14,835 105 100
- Amounts owed by group undertakings ’ L. - 2,569 2,569
. Less provision for impairment _— - - (2.569) (2,569) |
Other receivables. ’ . 10,249 . 13,266 19 k -
Prepayments C ) 33,710 29,340 - C.
124 100
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17 Trade and other receivables B ‘ (Continued)

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

.

Group o - Company -
2019 2018 . 2019 2018
. ) UsS$'000 - . USS$'000 USs$'000 Us$'000 -
- Movements in provision for impairment : ’
At 1 January ) A " 2,240 3,821 2,569 2,569
Provision for receivables impairment 1,201 1,197 . S
" Receivables written off in the year (981) (849) - - -
- Inflation adjustments , ' 757 - ' - -
Exchange differences ' (831) (1,929) - .
At 31 December ' : 2,386 2,240 2,569 2,569

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30 to 80 day term. Due to their short maturities,
the fair value of.trade receivables approximates their book value.

As at the reporting date, there were no trade receivables past due but not impaired ('2018: USSshil).

18 Trade and other payables

Group - ~ Company
2018 2018 (1) 2019 2018 (1)
- Non-current . ) : )

Trade payables ' 25,551 41,292 . 4 -
- Other taxation and social security - - 562 394 : - oo
~ Amounts owed to group undertakings - Co- 1,053 300
Other payables * 1,448 . 1581 1,448 2,289
27,561 43,267 2,501 2,589

Current . . .
Trade payables : ) ) 135,052 101,538 166 165
Other taxation and social security . 13,709 18.362 - -
gz\ézmment payables felated to compensation 4338 2,463 . CL .
Othgr payables . . - 1,926 . 4,656 1,368 . - -
Accrued expenses 12,870 14,351 o792 743
' 167,895 . 141,370 - 2,326 . 908

* $2,289,000 of the Company's non-current other payables were classified as non-current trade payables in the
comparative year and were re-classified as other payables in the current year.

(1) prior periods have been reclassified in order to improve presentation. See note 1.2.
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18 Trade and other payables . (Continued)

Settlement of CAMMESA's histeric debt ,
_ At 31 December 2019 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$17.2 million (AR$ 1 billion) for historic energy purchases
' lncurred prior to 2019. .

Durmg 2018, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed a payment plan for CAMMESA's historical debt of US$ 69.4 million
which included a reduction in late charges, a grace period from 1 February 2016 to April 2018, a tlnancmg term of
80 manths from April 2018 until September 2025 and a fixed annual interest rate of 10%. The agreement is being
fultilled and there were no unpaid instalments at the reporting date. No formal additional payment request has been
received as of the date of this report considering the overdue current debt with CAMMESA menuoned below.

Settiement of CAMMESA's histaric debt under Article 15

On 21 December 2016, Law 27.341 was published (National Budget 2017). Anicle 15 of this law eslablished the

compensation terms for the historic debt which Argentine electricity distributors have with CAMMESA in refation to
- the purchase of snergy between 2013 and 2016 (time during which electricity tariffs were frozen). Under this law, a

company should be able to net off the foregone income with the amount payable to CAMMESA. On the basis that .

EDEMSA's foregone income was higher than the liability owed to CAMMESA, the apphcatlon of the law should

result in a full discharge of the outstanding liability.

Although EDEMSA has agreed a payment plan with CAMMESA in respect of the 2013-2016 period, EDEMSA did

not relinquish its right to claim the Article 15 cradit. Subsequently, the company has-filed a claim with the Energy

Secretariat of the Nation to request the application of Anticle 15. No response has been received regarding this
_claim as of the date of |ssuance of thase financial statements.

Settiement of CAMMESA's current debt

At 31 December 2019 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$105.6 million (ARS 6.3 billion) for energy purchases of wh:ch

US$88.4 million (ARS 5.3 billion) relates to 2018 and are due immediately.

EDEMSA is currently in the process ol negotiating a payment plan with CAMMESA to ensure it is reflective of the

. tough economic landscape in which EDEMSA operates. While the negotiations are ongoing; the outstanding debt

- continues o be payable on demand. Alter a formal payment request made from CAMMESA on January 2020,

EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed the suspension of procedural deadlines while negohanons are ongoing under
Law 27581, Article 87

On 14 December 2020, Law 27591 was published (National Budget 2021) Article 87 of this law instructs the Energy
Secretariat of the Nation to regularize the debts and credits with the distributors. The measures contemplate
different alternatives, which include, the negotiation of a payment plan for up to 60 months with a grace period and
reduction of the interest rate. Likewise, the Ministry of Energy is empowered to dictate the applicable regulations
and determine, apply. and recognize n the fiscal year 2021 the credit recognized by article 15 (Law No. 27,341).
These measures were regulated by the Ministry of Energy under Resolution 40/2021 on 21 January 2021. EDEMSA
has made the presentanons of the information requested by the authorities in this regard.
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19 Borrowings

. Group : Company
Notes 2019 2018 2019 2018
US$'000 Uss'000 | US$'000 Us$'000
. ‘ (1) A )
Non-current: - : E
Other borrowings 8,860 997 1,014 - 913
' . 8,860 997 . ) 1,014 913
Current: . ‘ ‘ ‘ : '
. Bank borrowings : - 853 A -
Other borrowings 7,875 8.886 7.766 7,454
: 7.875 8,739 7,766 . 7,454
16,735 10,736 8,780 - 8,367
(1) prior periods have been reclassified in order to improve presentation. See note 1.2
Movement in borrowings is analyzed as follows:
Group ’ Company I
Notés 2019 . - 2018 2019 2018 -
‘ Uss'e00 uss'coo Uss$'000 "US$'000
At 1 January 10,736 ~ 16,281 . 8,367 - 8.749
" Proceeds from borrowings : 408 1,066 - -
Accruad inferest’ . : . 2,298 1,225 . 913 724
Leases reclassified . 20 (1,118) e -
. Repayments of barrowings - . .
and interest (1,651) {6,718) (500} (1,106)
Reclassifiad from other i
payable * - . 4,993 - c-
Exchange difference o (49) - - .
At 31 December ’ 10,736 8,780 8,367

16,735 -

»

e Relates to éhareholders' and director's loan previously included .within current and non-current payatiles within trade

and other payables.
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19  Borrowings ' N , : {Continued)

~ Thie Group's and Co‘mpany‘s other borrowings comprise of:
! .
Group

« US$2.6 million loan from Crisscross International Davelopment Inc. The loan is unsecured and.bears 8%
annual interest up to 31 December 2019 and 11% per annum thereafter. The loan and accrued interest are
repayable on 31 December 2021: At 31 December 2019 the accrued interest amounted to US $369,000.

The loan was previously provided by the shareholders. On 30 June 2019 the shareholders transferred the
loan to Crisscross International Development Inc, which is an unconnected party.

e US$1.7 million loan lrom Neil Bleasdale, the Company's director and shareholder. The loan is unsecured
and bears 8% annual interest up to 31 December 2019 and 11% per annum thereafter. The loan and accrued
interest are repayable on 31 December 2021. At 31 December 2019 the accrued interest amounted to
US$219,000.

+ US$1.4 million loan from Generation Capital Investments S.A.. The loan is unsecured and bears 8% annual
interest up to 31 December 2019 and 11% per annum thereafter. The loan and accrued-interest are
repayable on 31 December 2021. At 31 December 2019 the accrued interest amounted to US$864,000.

The loan was previously provided by Magnus Argentina S.A., TV Pius S.A. and Brambel. On 4 October 2019
- the loan was sold to Generation Capital Investments 8.A., which is an unconnected party.

*  AR$22.3 million (US$373,000) from Trench Energy Consuiting SRL. Theloan is unsecured and bears annual .
interest at BADLAR + 5% up to 31 December 2019 and 8% per annum thereafter. The loan and accrued
interest are repayable on 31 December 2021. At 31 December 2019 the accrued interest amounted to ,
AR$10.6 million (US$177,000). ,

Trench Energy Consulting S.R.L. (*Trench*) provides a comprehensive conéulling service to EDEMSA.
Trench develops commercial activities and receives, among others, advisory services from Andes -
Electricidad S.A., an indiract controlling Company of EDEMSA, as pan ofa deveiopmem and expansion
plan. .

¢ AR$10.6 million {US$177,000) from DALAI SA. The loan is unsecured and bears annual interest of 8% per

, annum from 1 January 2020. No interest was charged prior to 1 January 2020. The foan and accrued interest
are repayable on 31 December 2021. The currency lerms of the loan were changed in 2019 from US$ to
ARS

In November 2020, a binding agreement was signed with Cri§scross international Development Inc. and
Generation Capital investments S.A. to convert the outstanding debt and the accrued interest into the equity
" shares of the Company. For turther details refer to note 33.

Company

+ US$3 million credit line fram Stanhope Worldwide Services Inc., of which US$0.9 million remained
outstanding at 31 December 2018. The loan is unsecured and bears 8% annual interest. The loan and
accrued interest are repayable on 31 Decembér 2021 with an option to extend the maturity date by a
further 12 months. At 31 December 2019 the accrued interest amounted to US$74,000.

. USS$7 million overdue loan from South American Energy Development LLC (hereafter "SAED"), of which

US$6.2 miliion remained outstanding at 31 December 2019 and has been presented in current ather

- borrowings. The loan is unsecured and bears 11% annual interest payable manthly. At 31 December
2019 the accrued interest amounted to US$1.6 miltion. [

In November 2020, a legally binding agreement was signed with Stanhope Worldwide Services Inc. and SAED
1o convert the outstanding debt and the accrued interest into the equity shares of the Company. For further details
refer to note 33 ,
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20 Leases
Group Company !
2019 2018 2019 2018

. . us$'000 - USS'000 . USs'e00 uUSs$'000
Right of use assets :
At 1 January : . - . - -
Additions in the year - . 1,809 - - - -
Amortization . (49) - - -
Exchange adjustments / - - . - {(586) - - -~
At 31 Decemberr 1,224 . - -
Lease liability . VL
At 1 January , : 827 1,118 - -
New leases obtained - ' ~ 1,407 : - - : -
Repayments of leases . (816) {291) - -
At 31 December \ 1,418 827 L -
Of which are:
Non-current . - 1,051 614 - -
Current . . 367 213 - -

1,418 827 - -

In the previous year, the Group only recognized lease assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases that were
classified as ‘finance leases’ under IAS 17, ‘Leases’. The assets were presented in machinery and equipment
in note 13 and the liabilities as part of the Group's borrowings in note 19. For adjustments recognized on
adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, refer to note 32.

21 Provisions

Grou * Compani
_ 2013 2018 ' gm; 2018
: US$'000 -USs$'000 UsSs'000 US$'000 -
Fines E ' " 6119 © 11,685 - ' -
Legal claims ' . 601 817 - . -

. . : . 6,720 . 12,502 - .
Non-current - 402 . 507 - -
Current _ . 6,318 11,985 . - -

: Y 6,720 12,502 - -
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21

Provisions

Movements in provisions:

_ Group

‘At 1 January 2019

Additional provisions in the year
Used/paid during the year
Exchange difference

Inflation adjustment

At 31 December 2019

G}oup

At 1 January 2018

Additional provisions in the year’
. Used/paid during the year

Exchange difference
At 31 December 2018

Fines

' Legal

>

. Fines ‘claims Total
uss'oao Us$'000 USS$'000
11,685 - 817 12,502
5,865 712 6,577
{11,050) (902) (11,952)
(4,337) (303) (4.640)
3,956 277 4,233
6,119 601 6,720
Legal
Fines claims Total
USS'000 - US$'000 US$'000
22,484 1,188 23,672
5,861 526 6,387
(56,309) (297) (5,606) -
(11,351) (600) (11,951)
11,685 817 - 12,502

(Continued)

EDEMSA's activities are regulated by the provincial regulator, Ente Provincial Regulador Eléctrico (“EPRE").
EPRE regulates rate approval and control and supervision of service, technical product and commercial quality.
Failure to comply with the provisions of the concession-and applicable regulations may result in.penalties being
imposed. EDEMSA has been assessed as being in breach of the stage [l quality standards and is therefore -
subject to penalties. The Group has appealed the penalties, At the reporting date, no response has been recaived

to the appeal and the Group has provided US$2.1 million (2018: US §7.6 ‘miillion) for the prospective penames.

and US$ 4.0 miltion: (2018 US$ 4.1 million) to cover the risks assoc:ated with possible finas.

Legal claims

This represent provisions for certain claxms relating lo penatlties in connection with service quality, which are

expected to.crystallize under varied terms after the reporting date

in management’s opinion, after taking appropriate legal advice, the outcome of these claims is unlikely to gwe
rise to any sngnmcant loss in excess of the amounts provided.
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»

22 Deferred taxation

" The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognized by the Group and Company, and
movements thereon: :

v Liabilities ~ Liabilities - Assets Assets

Group 2019 2018 2018 . . 2018
Us$'o00 . - USS$'000 US$'000 UsS$000
Provision for bad debt - (436) - (422) - . -
. Notional income tax {1,931) (3,185) - - - -
Provision charges 68 - 2,143 - -
Employee benefits - : : (1,153) (1,424) To- -
- Carry forward losses . (9.156) (5.398) ) - © 42
Other 8,178 (128) - -
Non-current assets - 39,545 36,583 - -
" Borrowings ' - {60) (135) - -
35,055 28,034 - 42

‘The Company has no deferred tax assets or Iigbilities,' .

\
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N

©'22 Deferred taxation ' (Continued)

Movements in deferred tax assets

. Provision Notional  Provision- Employee ‘Carry Other . Total

for bad income . forward
( debt tax charges bepeMs losses
: US$'000 US$'600 US$'000 - USS'000  USS$'000° US$'000  US$'000
At 1 January 2018 - 834 3,778 10,274 2,270 6,182 322 23,460 .
. {Charge)/credit to the ) ] Co .

profit or loss . . (42) (9,482) . (435) 2,532 (183) - (7,610)
Credit to employee . - : ‘
benefits ) - 200 - - 200 ,
Minimal notional tax .
paid - 1.314 - - - - 1,314
Hyperintiation effect 302 - - 7,961 1,081 " (368) 309 9,285
Exchange differences . (472) (1.907) (10,896) (1,692) (2,948) (320) (18,235)
At 31 ADecember 2018 422 . 3,185 (2,143) - 1,424 5,398 128 8.414
{Charge)/credit to the . '
profit of loss ‘28 (370) . 2,005 (?30) 3,934 (1;‘362) 4.00§
(Charge)/cradit to ) N ) 5 A T 5
employee benetfits ;
:;/I;ir:jlmal notional tax . (1,070) ) ) B A - (1,070)
Hyperintiation effect 227 1.714 {1,153} . 767 2,906 69 4,530
Exchange differences (241) (1,528) . 1,223 {813) (3.082) (73) {4,514)
At 31 December 2019 436 1,931 (68) 1,163 9,156 (1,238) - 11,370

et i ettt

e e —— —
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7

22 Deferred taxation ' ' : ‘(Continued)

Movements in deferred tax liabilities

Non-current Other . Total

Borrowings assets ’ t
- Usso00 . usgopn  USS000 USs'000
At 1 January 2018 . (733) (3,734) - (4,467)
Charge 1o loss : - {71} . (1,048) - (1.117)
Hyperinflation effect ' 1,742 © {70,748) - (69,006)
Exchange differences , (803) - . 38,945 - 38,142
At 31 December 2018 . 135 (36,583) - (36,448)
(Charge) to loss . . (71) © (4,015) {6,940} (11,026)
Hyperinflation effect o 73. (20,374) - {20,301)
Yy Exchange differences R (77) 21,427 - . 21,350 -

) At 31 December 2019 60 (39,545) . {6,940) (46,425)

Net deferred income tax liability N
At 31 December 2019 ! : 35,055

At 31 December 2018 ' ' ‘ (28,034)

In addition to the net deferred income tax liability of US$35 million (2018: US$28 mllhon) the Group has recogmzed
a non-offsetting deferred income tax asset of US$nil (2018: US$0.04 million).

Minimum notional income tax is payablein Argentina and is supplementary to income tax. At the year end the Group
determines the amount of minimum notional income tax due at the applicable tax rate and its tax liability is the
higher of the minimum notional tax and the income tax due. However, if the minimum notional incorme tax tor a

* given year exceeds the amount of income tax, such excess may be carried forward against future income tax
liabilities for a maximum of ten years. In 2019 the application of the minimum notional income tax was repealed for
the years beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The minimum notional income tax is included as a deferred-tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxgble
profits will be available against WhICh the minimum notional income tax can be utilized.

In the Group, losses in respect of which deferred tax assets have been recognized will explre between 2020 and
2022. '
~
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23 Employee beneﬁts schemeS

Long term benefits for years of service -

This represents the accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by the collective bargammg agreement for
the industry labour union, that have completed twenty, twenty-five, thirty, and thitty-five years of service. This is
paid in the form of a special remuneration equivalént to the monthly saiary in the month that the year of service
conditions are met. This amoum doubles when the employee reaches forly years of service.

Long term benefits for retirement or disability

The Group operates a defined benefit plan. This represents accrued benefits to be paid to empioyees covered
by the collective bargaining agreement for light and power industry, for staff reachmg retiring age or retiring as a
result of disability prior to this. All such employees who have at least five years of service with the Group are
entitied to this benefit. Employees are paid a bonus equivalent to ten months of their last monthiy salary. This
benefit is increased by two percent for each year of service exceeding the first five years. :

These benefits are valued according to the actuasial method of the projected unit credit. The Group estimates
the future outcome of certain variables that affect the value of the liability, including the rate of inflation, salary
increases and changes in mortality rates. The amounts calculated are discounted using a discount rate that
reflects the time value of money and the risks specific to the tlows considered. The ditferences between the prior

" year estimates and the actual charge and changes in- est:mates are classified as gains and losses wnh
admmlstratwe expenses.

The main assumptions used in the éalculation are the discount rate and the expectad salary increase. The actual
. rate used to discount the obligations of these benefits was determined by reference to the market yield (at the .
"I reporting date) of the Nationat Government's bonds. The salary increase rate rasponds to the historical evolution

of it. _ ) ’ .
. ‘ . 2019 2018
Key assumptions ) . . % %
Discount rate ' ' ‘ - 15.5 15.5
Expected rate of salary increases ) : 9 9
: : . . 2019 2018
-Amounts recognized in the income statement : UsSs'000 - US$'000
" Current service cost | ‘ : 783 705
Net interest on net defined benetit liability ’ . 660 598
Total costs ) ' - ' 1.443 1,303
_ . . 2019 2018
Amounts taken to other comprehensive income . uss'oco - 1US$'000
Actuarial changes related to obligations ' . - 673 798
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23 Employee benefits schemes

The amounts included in the statement of financial position arising from obligations in respect of defined benefit

plans are as tolfows:

S ; 2019 2018
Group A USS'000  US$'000
' Present value of defined benefit obligations . 4,612 5,955
Deficit in scheme . ‘ 4,612

(Continued}

5,955

The Company had no post-employment benetits at 31 December 2018 or 31 December 2018 -

A R . ‘Group -Group

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2019 2018

N ’ . Uss‘'c00 uUss$'000

Liabilities at 1 January 2019 : 5,955 - 8,520
Current service cost . ) 783 705
Benefits paid (2,805) (2,906)
Actuarial gains and losses ’ . 673 798
Interest cost : 598

" Other (1,760)
At 31 December 2019 5,955

There are no plan assats and therefore the liability presented is the gross defined benefit liability.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit liability outstandmg at 31 December 2019 to changes in the main

actuaria) assumptions is as foliows:

* Increase ! decrease of 1% in dtscount rate will result in a decrease of US$318,000 / an increase of

. US$375,000 in the liability respectively;

* Increase / decrease of 1% in rate of salary increases will result in an increase of US$386,000 / a decrease

of US$335,000 in the liability respectively.
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24 Warrants

The Company issued warrants to subscribe for its ordinary shares. All outstanding warrants expired during the
year and. at the reporting date there were no outstanding warrants as show below:

Group and Company Number of share options - Weighted average exercise

‘ - price
2019 2018 2019 2018
Number Number Uss'000 . Uss'000
Ouistanding at 1 January 2,158,120 9,982,120 0.54 . 0.54
Expired ] ’ ' (2,188,120)  (7,824,000) - - 0.54
" Outstanding at 31 December . . - 2,158,120 0.54 054

Exercisable at 31 Decembar - 2,158,120 0.54 0.54

Group and Company

The fair values of warrants, which fall under the scope of {FRS 2 "Share-based payments®, were calculated using -
the Black-Scholes model. The eslimated fair values of warrants and the inputs used in the model to calculate
those fair values are as follows:

“{inputs were as follows:

June 2012
Weighted average share price (£) : 0.45
Weighted average exercise price (£) T ' 0.54
Expected volatility (%) . o . 53.00
Expected life (years) - ) 7.00
B Risk free rate (%) 1.80
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© 24 Warrants E

The share price is the pre-demerger share price of Andes and the volatmty was denved from the predemerger

Andes share activity.

(Commued)

Warrants granted to and held by directoré durjng the year are detailed below:

’ 2019 . 2018
Number Number,

Neil Bleasdale ' - 423,800
Luis Alvarez Poli . - 293,400
Marcelo Comba - 65,200
Nigel Duxbury” - 130,400
Senior Management . . - 1,245,320
. - 2,158,120

{*) Not appointed as director since’ April 2018.

25 Share capital and reserves

Ordihaw sﬁare capital
Issued and fully paid
96,156,114 (2018: 96,156,114) ordinary shares of 10p each

Preference share capital
Issued and fully paid

50,000 (2018: 50,000} redeemable preference shares of £1 each

Preference shares classified as liabilities

Reserves : 4

Merger reserve

Exercise . Exercise

"Price (USS) ' Date.
J :

0.54 2019

0.54 . 2019

0.54 . T 2019

0.54 A 2019

'0.54 2019

Group and Com pahy

2019 2018
USS'000 _  US$'000
14,904 14,904
78 .78

78 .78

The merger reserve arose following the completion of the demerger on 11 July 2012.

Translation reserve

The transldtion reserve results from exchange differences arising from the transtation of the assets and fiabilities
of the Group's operations into the presentation currency at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date, and

income and expense items at the average‘.exchange rates for the reporting year.

Retained earnings/(deficit)

The retained earnings/{deficit) include all other net gams and’ losses and lransacnons wnh owners (eg

dividends) not recognized elsewhere)
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26 -

Financial instruments

. The Group is exposed through its operations to the following tinangial risks: market risk, foreign currency risk,

interest rate risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and capital risk. Management seek to minimize the Group’s
exposure fo those risks by reviewing and agreeing policies for managing each financial risk and monitoring them
on a regular basis. No formal policies have bgen put in place in order to hedge the Group’s activities to the
exposure lo interest rate risk, price risk or foreign currency risk,-however these may be considered in'future. No
derivalives or hedges were. entered into during the year. )

There have been no substantive changes in the Group's exposure to financial instrument risks, its pohcnes and
processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them unless otherwise stated in this note.

Principal financial instruments

_ The Group's principal financial instruments, from which financial instrument risk arises, comprise cash and cash

equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.
The table below shows the carrying values of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.

Group . Company e
2016 2018 A 2018
. Us$'e00 Uss'o0o US$'000 uss$'c00
Carrying amount of financial assets : ' _
Trade and other receivable - 48,876 40,435 124 : 100 -

Cash and cash equivalents 7.851 22,341 19 20
Instruments measured at fair value through profit or {oss 42,336 38,465 . - -
Carrying amount of financial liabilities ' . ’ .
Measured at amortized cost 199,338 177,424 12,564 11,864
. " ) N
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter dlmculty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by dehvenng cash or another financial asset.

. Liquidity risk i is monitored by the Group to ensure that it has sufficient resources to meet its financial obligations

as they fall due. The liquidity risk of the Group is managed by the Board who monitor the Group's liquidity
requirements through monthly management accounts and periodic cash flow forecasts. New borrowings are taken
on where additional funds are raquired. The Group intends to maintain a balance of funding designed to reduce
liquidity risks whilst also sesking to minimize the costs of borrowing. Where appropriate the Board will seek

additional funds from the issue of share capital, private or public placements. .

The table below shows the Group and Company's financial liabilities at the reporting date by their remaining
contractual maturity. The amounts disclosed in the maturity table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
which ditfer trom the amounts included in the statement of financial position because the balances presented in
the statement of financial position are based on discounted cash flows.
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26 Financial instruments o {Continued)
Group - . Carrying Contractual : 1 year 1t05 Over 5
2019 . . amount cash flows or less years years
' ’ uss$'000 US3$'000 USs$'000 USS$'000 Us$'000
Current financial liabilities: o :
Trade and other payables 163,244 153,244 | 153,244 R -
Loans and borrowings ) . 8,885 8,968 8,968 s -
Leases : ' 367 382 382 - -
Non-current financial Ilabllmes: . ) . :
Trade and other payables 27,941 36,090 - 31,694 4,396
Loans and borrowings 7,850 . 9,251 y 9,251 -
Leases 1,051 ) 1,274 - 1,274 -
. 199,338 209,209 162,594 42219 4,396
Company Carrying  Contractual. 1 year 105 Over5
- 2019 . amount cash flows or less years years
’ US$'000 Uss'000 USs$'000 uss$'000 uUss'ooo
Current financial liabilitles: ‘ ‘ .
Trade and other payables ) 1,384 1,384 1,384 o - L.
Loans and borrowings . 8,780 10,119 10,119 - -
Non-current financial liabilities: ’ ' . : .
Trade and other payables . ' - 2,390 2,390 ) - 2,390 -
L.oans and borrowings : - - L - . - -
' 12,554 13,893 11,503 2,390 -
Group Carrying  Contractual 1 year 1tos Over §
2018 . ' : ., amount cash flows or less years " years
: Uss$'000 USs$'000 ‘Uss'oco uss'ooo uss'000
Current financial liabilities: _ . . ) . ) :
Trade and other payables ©122,042 106,233 108,233 ' - .-
Loans and borrowings - 9,739 © 11,808 11,808 - - ) B
Leases 213 213 213 - -
Non-current financial liabilities: . ' .
Trade and other payables =~ . 43,819 43,160 31,290° 11,870
Loans and borrowings ' - 897 2,406 | - 2.406 -
Leajses _ o 614 814 - 614 -

177,424 . 164,434 118,254 34,310 11,870

A ————
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26 Financial instruments

- Company
2018

Current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

Non-current financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

Credit risk

7/

(Continued)
Carrying Contractual 1 year 1t05 Over 5
amount cash flows or less years years
USS$'co0 | USS'000 USs$'000 Us3$'000 US$'000
908 908 908 - -
7.454 - 9,247 9,247 - -
2,589 . 2,289 2,289
913 1,214 1,214 N
11,864 - 13,658 10,155 3,503 -

In accordance with the focal legistation, the Group is not able to subject its customer porltollo to a regular credit
risk assessment and is therefore exposed to credit risk due to the possibility that customers may fait to meet
their financial obligations. The Group has the right to disconnect services if customers fall to meet thelr financial

obligations.

. : P . . . :
The Group is also subject to counterparty credit risk attributabte oits depos:ls of cash and cash equivaients.
The risk is limited because the counterparties are banks with hlgh credit ratings assigned by mtemahonal

credit-rating agencies.

b

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to

credit risk at the reporting date was:

Gréup

Current financial assets:
Trade and other receivables
Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Company
Current financial assets:

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

2019 . 2018
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
value exposure value .  exposure
USS$'000 ussg'oae Uss$'000 uss'o00
48,876 48,876 40,435 40,435
42,336 . 42,336 38,465 . 31,351
7.851 7,851 22,341 22,341
99,063 99,063 101,241 94,127

2019 2018
Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum
value exposure value exposure

US$'000 Uss$'000 uss$'o00 USs$'000 |

124 124 100 - 100
19 ° 19 20 20
143 143 120 120

e . st
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26 Financial instruments ‘ ' . (Continued)

-Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to markel risks. Market nsks arise !rom open positions in (a) foreign currencies
and (b) interest bearing liabilities and commodity risks, all of which are exposed to general and specitic market
movements. Management does not set limits on the value of risk that may be accepted. However, management
is an alert for significant market movements and takes these movements into account in their future dealings.

Sensitivities to market risks included below are baéed oh a change in a factor while holding all other factors
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the factors may be correlated, for example.
changes in mterest rates and changes in foreign currency rates.

Interest rate risk -

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financiat instrument wm fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. If variable interest rates increased by 1% compared to the current rate this -
would result in a US$15,000 additional charge to the income statement. The Group’s exposure to cash flow
interest fate risk comes from variable interest borrowmgs

The Group does not have formal policies and proceduras in place for management of interest rate nsks as
management cons:ders this risk as insignificant to the Group's business.

Price risk :

Whilst the Group is not subject to price risk due to its tariffs not bemg open market based, its busmess is based
on a regulated tariff structure. If future tariff reviews are not forthcoming, this will adversely affect cash flows and
the ability of the Group to invest in the business and could impair Group asset values. The Group has not entered
into any defivative arrangements in this respect; In connection with electricity sales, the Group is not exposed to
fisk in relation to fluctuations in-the prices paid to purchase the electricity in the market since any price fluctuations
are passed on to the customers. : :

The Group is exposed to commodily price risk in relation to the purchase of copper wires used in the distribution
networks. The Group does not use derivatives to hedge this fisk. The Group is also exposed'to price risk due to
inflationary increases in the price of the goods and services it purchases. To manage its exposure to this risk,
the Group has stated business practices aimed to select the most convenient suppliers, whnch ensure mmnmnsmg
the costs of purchasing inputs without resigning the quahty of them.

Forengn currency risk : .
Cumency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will |Iuctuale because of
changes in forelgn exchange rates.

. The Group is mainly exposed to cufrency risks on certam bank deposuts debtors and credllors denommaled in
a ditferent currency from their luncuonai currency.

The Group's exposure to toreign currency risk mainly relates to balances in USS, based on carrymg amounts at
the reporting date as follows:

2019 2018

US$'000 US$'000 -
Trade and other. recenvables ST : ' . 2283 2,478
Investment . 32,139 22,341
Cash and cash equivalents . ~ 2,552 - 8,681
, Financial liabilities : : (20,234) {20,629)

16,740 12,871
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26 Finencial instruments

. (Continued)
Effect on profit of changes in exchange rates :
R 2019 2018
’ Uss$'000 uUss'000
Funciional‘currency strengthening by 26% ' ' 3,765 1,972
Functional currency weakening by 26% 3,765) (1,972)

Capi\al risk
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to saieguard the Group s ability to
- continue as a going concern, to maintain sufficient financial flexibility in order to
undenrtake its investment plans, and to optimize the weighted average cost of capital and tax efficiency.

To maintain or adjust the optimum capital structure, the Group may put in place new debt facilities, issue new capital
for cash, repay or restructure exustmg debt, amend its dividend pohcy. or undertake other such restructuring
activilies as appropriate.

_Neither the Company nor gny ot its subsidiaries are sub1ect 10 externally imposed capital requnements

The Group monitors capital on the basns of the net debt ratio as foliows:

, s : , ' © . Group

: - 2019 2018

' . ) US$'000 Us$'000
Borrowings excluding leases ’ . 16,736 .. 10,736
Less: cash and cash equivalents : . . (7.85 1) (22,341).
Net debt ) - ‘ - 8,884 (11,608)
Total equity - R : . ) 69,135 94,835
Equity and net debt - ) 78,019 8_3.23
Net debt ratio S ' _ 11% (14%)
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27 Capital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
. ' o - Uss$'c00 USS$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 9,392 13,491 - -

All amounts are categorized as less than one year.

28 Related party transactions

" Remuneration of key management personnel )
Key management include directors (executive and non-executive) and senior management who have authority for -
planmng. directing and controlling the Group. The compensahon paid or payable to key management for employee -

" services is shown be!ow

y ) Group . COmpany
. 2019 2018 2019 2018
US$'000 US$'000  US$'000  US$'000

/- : .
Salaries and other short term benetfits 362 468 - .80
Share based payments : - 25 - 25
362 - 493 - - 105

Year end balances with related parties
Amounts outstanding at the repomng date owed by the Company to reiated pames are stated below

. Group - Company .
) . . . 2019 2018 2019 ©~ . 2018
: - US$'000  US$'000 USs'000 uss'ooo
Key management personnel ‘ 1,943 2,578 - 23,
’ ' ’ : ’ , 1,943 2,578 - 23

Amounts owed to key management personnel are due to one of the Cohpany s directors, Neil Bleasdale and his
related company. During the year, the loan under his related company was transferred to an unrelated party

No other transactions occurred with related pames during the current and precedmg years.
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29 Contingent liabilities - - ' _ (

. . . , .
EDEMSA has received a claimtrom the Argentine fiscal bureau in respect of a different interpretation of tax assessed
in certain years. On 26 June 2007 the Group received notice from the autharities of its intention to pursue the claim ~
plus interest and penalties. In the opinion of EDEMSA’s tax advisors, the criteria useld by the Argentine fiscal bureau
is not in line with tax regulation. For this reason, the’ Group has not made a provision for this claim. On 19 July 2007
EDEMSA filed appeals with the National Tax Court. The Group does not believe an estimate of its financial effect is

. practicable and could be misleading. The matter remains outstanding as at year end, and the Cormpany's positions
remains the same based on recent tax advice. - ) : ’

30 Cash generated from group operations

2019 2018
USs$'000 uss'c00
(Loss)profit for the year after tax - (20.575) 18,582
Adjustments for: ‘ -~ : : 4
Taxation.charged . . : 7,701 ~ 9,679
Finance costs ’ . 48,733 © 25,443
Finance income : : e \ {13,544) {9,530)
Hyperinflation impact : . {34,830) (24,863)
Amortization of intangible assets o, ) , 252 126
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ' 9,669 2,128
Impairment of propenty, plant and equipment : ] - 17.246
Decrease in provisions ) oo . {6,046) (15,727)
Movements in working capital: . R
Increase in inventories (4,878) (1,776)
Increase in trade and othar payables ‘ 71,609 © 17,856
Increass in trade and other receivables -~ . (41,571) __(11,114)
Cash generated from operations _ 16,520 28,060
31 Cash generated from / {absorbed by) operations - company .
o - : ' 2019 2018
) i _ ) US$'000 Uss'000

(Loss)/profit for the year after tax - - - ) {(1.826) © 1,061
Adjustments for: . .
Finance costs . . . 913 - - 344
Finance income ¢ - (1,546) -
Movements in working capital: ) o .
increase in trade and other receivables . (24) -
Increase in trade and other payables ' 1,330 151

Cash generated from operations ‘ 393 -

-71-



~

>

ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 J

32 Effects of changes in accounting policies

This note explaing the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, on the Groub's financial statements, -

As indicated in note 1 above, the Group have adopted IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ retrospectively from 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach, with recognition of transitional adjustments on the date of initial application (1
January 2019), without restatement of comparative figures. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient to not
reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application. Contracts entered into before the
transition date that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed.

The deﬁnition of a lease under IFRS 16 was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 January
2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in note 1. : .

On adoption of IFRS 16, {he Group recognized lease liabilities in relation to leases for office and equipment which had
previously been classified a5 ‘operating leases’ under the principles of IAS 17, ‘Leases’. These liabliities were measured
al'the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremiental borrowing rate as of
1 January 2019 of 5°\/o to 5.5%. . T

-

IFRS 16 provides for certain optional practical expedients, fncluding those related to the initial adoption of the standard.
The Group applied the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17: . . ’

* Relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an alternative to performing an
impairment review - there were no onerous conlracts as at 1 January 2019; . .

* Accounting for operating leages with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as
short-term leases; ‘ .

» Excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initiai application; and

* " Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease. : ‘

. ' . US$'000

Measurement of lease liabilities .
Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 . -
Less short-term and discontinued leases .

‘Recognized lease commitments ’ ; - ' .
. Lease commitments discounted using incremental borrowing rate of 5% - 5.5% -
Add finance lease liabifities recognized as at 31 December 2018 -

Lease liabilities recognized at 1 January 2019 ’ . ' \ -

SEemeTTE—
Of which are: _
Current . T
Non-current ' ) : .
N =n—=~—-__'-—._;-
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33 Subsequent events ‘ . )

Borrowings

In November 2020, a legally binding agreement was signed with SAED to convert the entire outstanding debt of

. USD 7,061,385, including interest, into equity shares of the Company equivalent for a USD 4,263,297 and aquity
shares of one of its subsidiaries HDS that represent the 40% of the capital and voting rights of HDS at the price
of USsD 2, 798,088.

Additionally, a similar agreemém was signed with other creditors of the Company to convert a ludher US$6.4
. million of outstanding debts into the equity shares of the Company. For further details refer to note 19,

On 30 December 2020 the Company issued 44,853,670 of its ordinary shares to settle the above transactions.
The Group is currently finalizing the formal process to transfer HDS shares. .

- COVID-19

The current situation surfounding the Covid-19 global pandemic represents significant uncertainty for the Group,
the industry it operates in and the local and globat economy. It is not-possible to confidently assess the potential
consequences of Covid-18, as this depends on how fong the crises may [ast and the availability of the vaccine.
Although at the date of this réport the Group has experienced limited operational disruptions caused by the Covid-
19 pandemic, the future of the pandemic remains unknown and the' Group continues to face challenges emerging
from Government restrictions, staff absences and supply chain delays as well as disruptions to key partners and
capital markets.

Managemem have camed out multiple scenario analyses of potential downsides mcludmg decreases in the
demand for electricity, as well as workforce and supply chain disruptions. Whilst the future of the pandemic
remains unknown, based on the scenario analyses performed, the Group has sufficient resources to adapt to the
current and potential challenges it may face. However, it is possible that future impairment may need to be
recognized for the Group's tangible and intangible assets should the Group face a decrease in market demand
and/or supply as a result of Covid-19.

CAMMESA

On December 14, 2020, Law 27591 was published {National Budget 2021). Article 87 of this taw instructs the Energy
Secretariat of the Nation to regularize the debts and credits with the distributors. The measures contempiate different
alternatives, which include, the negotiation of a payment plan for up to 60 months with a grace period and reduction of
the interest rate. Likewise, the Ministry of Energy is empowered to dictate the applicable regulations and determine, .
apply and recognize in the fiscal year 2021 the credit recognized by article 15 (Law No. 27,34). These measures were
regulated by the Minisiry of Energy under Resolution 40/2021 on January 21, 2021. EDEMSA has made the
presentations ot the information requested by the authorities in this regard. ’

Economic context

Between 1st January 2020 and 2 March 2021, the argentine peso was depreciated by a 51% compared with the
Amencan dollar according to the exchange rate from Banco de la Namon Argenlma

To the best ol the management’s and the directors’ knowledge. no other significant subsequent events not )
described -in this Annual Report have occurred since 31 December 2019 that would impact the financial
statements as presented for 2019.
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33 Subsequent events . A . (Continued) '
New investment

~ On 29 January 2021, Andina approved a 23.4% equity participation in South American Energy LLP, owner of 100% of
Energia del Cono Sur SA, the purchaser of 51% controlling stake of EDENOR, resulting in an indirect participation of
11.93% of the stock and voting power of EDENOR. The transaction is subject to, compliance of the National Electricity
Regulatory Entity (Ente Nacnonal Regulador de la Electricidad) prior approvai. .

EDENOR is the targest electricity dlsmbution company in Argentma in terms of number of customers and slectricity
sold {both in GWh and Pesos). The company holds a concession to distribute electricity exclusively in the northwestem
zone of the greater Buenos Aires metropolitan area and the northern part of the city of Buenos Aires, which has a
population of approximately 9 million people and an area of 4,637 sq. km..

The company is listed on the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange (BCBA: EDN) and its ADRs (Amencan Depositary :
Receipts) shares (each ADR representing 20 Class “B™ shares) are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE:
EDN) since 2007. : . . . '
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